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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics
of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors (the “Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information A5 &#
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Information 2 7] & % (continued )

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEADQUARTERS, HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 909-911, 9/F,,

Far East Consortium Building

121 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK CODE
8215

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.firstcredit.com.hk

Annual Report 2015

ot it 3 55 52

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

EEED ARFEERITESE
i 25

5

mEERI215%

BERERKE

9#8909-911 %

R 13 38 5 & 5L 48 B2

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

FEERMBPETLTDE

BEELEELERAQT
&5

27 KNER1835%

A D548

FEFERRT
E% L SERRTARAT
BB 1T (FB) BRAT

B 153 4% 5%

8215

KB Hh

www.firstcredit.com.hk



E—EHEMEERRAF

Chairman’s Statement £ E &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am
pleased to present to you the 2015 annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

For the year under review, the Group’s average loan balance increased from
approximately HK$318.15 million as at 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$402.14 million as at 31 December 2015. The Group's revenue increased
to approximately HK$63.26 million as compared to approximately HK$53.35
million in previous year. The Group recorded profit for the year of about
HK$24.87 million, representing a slight drop of around 0.5%, when compared
to the previous year.

The external operating environment had been challenging and the net interest
margin was still under pressure. In order to drive the sustainable growth of
our loan business, the Group will continue to seek for loan portfolio expansion
within a balanced risk and return framework. Considering the increasing
housing supply in the coming few years and the expected continuous demand
for property mortgage loans, the Group would strive to further develop the
traditional lending business, in particular property mortgage lending.

In view of the uncertain global economic outlook, we will actively pursue
those opportunities and growth in a cautious manner with high standard of
risk management ensuring that risks are assessed and controlled in accordance
with the Group’s stringent policies.

In pursuing sustainable growth and maximizing value for shareholders amid
the low interest rate environment, we will continue to adopt prudent treasury
management policies consistently in relation to surplus funds generated from
our operations from time to time to mitigate market risks and liquidity risks
associated with our core business and to ensure efficient use of our capital.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders
and customers for their continuing loyalty and support. Relying on the diligence
and dedication of our employees, we will unwaveringly maintain our focus on
the sustainability of our objectives while ensuring the long-term success of our
Group.

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 Mar 2016
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & & &1 & & 5 #7

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business which provides
customers with a wide range of loan products and services to meet their
December 2015, the Group
continued to focus on conducting money lending business, through a branch

financial needs. During the year ended 31

network of 4 branches in Hong Kong, by providing both secured and
unsecured loans to customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign

domestic workers.

In early February 2015, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$99.21 million by issuing 432,000,000 rights shares of HK$0.238 each on
the basis of three rights shares for every one share (“Rights Issue”). The actual
net proceeds from the Rights Issue had been fully deployed as intended for
lending related business and general working capital of the Group. Details of
the Rights Issue can be found in the prospectus dated 9 January 2015 and a
subsequent announcement dated 19 March 2015.

On 24 April 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement in respect
of the placement of 28,800,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.288 per
placing share. The placing price of HK$0.288 per placing share represented
a discount of approximately 16.52% over the closing price of HK$0.345 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 24 April 2015, being the date of the
placing agreement (“April Placing”). On 8 May 2015, a placing of 28,800,000
placing shares to not less than 6 independent third parties was completed.
The Directors considered the April Placing as a good opportunity to broaden
the shareholder base and raise additional funds at a reasonable cost. The net
price per placing share to the Company was approximately HK$0.274. The net
proceeds, after deduction of the commission and other expenses of the April
Placing, was approximately HK$7.88 million, which had been fully utilised for
the money lending business as intended.

In September 2015, the Group proposed a rights issue on the basis of twelve
rights shares for every one consolidated share at the subscription price of
HK$0.174 per rights share (“Attempted Rights Issue”), upon the completion
of the proposed consolidation of every two issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.01
Consolidation”).

each into one consolidated share of HK$0.02 each (“Share
The Share Consolidation had been taken effect from 11
December 2015. As the Attempted Rights Issue was voted down by the
independent shareholders at the special general meeting held on 10 December
2015, the Attempted Rights Issue was terminated. Relevant information of the
Attempted Rights Issue is set out in the announcements of the Company dated
18 September 2015, 26 October 2015, 24 November 2015 and 10 December
2015 respectively.

Upon the termination of the Attempted Rights Issue and in consideration of
the funding need to satisfy the expanding market and to further develop the
business of the Group, on 17 December 2015, the Company proposed (i) a
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 [E 5 58 & 2 3T (continued #)

placing which was expected to raise net proceeds of approximately HK$10.12
million (“December Placing”) and (ii) a rights issue on the basis of nine rights
shares for every one share at the subscription price of HK$0.127 per rights
share (“Second Proposed Rights Issue”) upon the completion of the December
Placing.

On 17 December 2015, the Company and Jun Yang Securities Company
Limited (“Jun Yang”) entered into a placing agreement (“Placing Agreement”)
of the December Placing pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through Jun Yang, on a best endeavour basis, up to
60,480,000 ordinary shares (“Placing Shares”), to not less than six placees
who and whose beneficial owners are independent third parties at a price of
HK$0.174 per Placing Share, which represented a discount of approximately
13.00% to the closing price of HK$0.20 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the Placing Agreement. The completion of the
December Placing took place on 8 January 2016. The net proceeds after
deduction of expenses from the December Placing were approximately
HK$10.12 million. The net placing price for the December Placing was
approximately HK$0.167 per Placing Share and the nominal value of the Placing
Shares under the December Placing was HK$1,209,600. The net proceeds of
the December Placing has been fully deployed as intended for money lending
business of the Group.

Meanwhile, the Second Proposed Rights Issue was expected to raise
approximately HK$414.77 million (before expenses) by issuing 3,265,920,000
rights shares. The net proceeds from the Second Proposed Rights Issue was
intended to be used mainly for providing secured lending depending on the
market situation in expansion of the Group’s loan portfolio.

Relevant information of the December Placing and the Second Proposed Rights
Issue is set out in the announcements of the Company dated 17 December
2015, 8 January 2016, 29 January 2016, 19 February 2016 and 3 March 2016
respectively.

After assessment of the progress and potential benefits of the business
development plan in Tianjin and in view of the considerable efforts and
resources devoted, the Group has decided to suspend the plan and may
consider revisiting the plan from time to time. The Directors will continue
to consider other scenarios or opportunities subject to the prevailing market
condition and the position of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group intends to strengthen its operation efficiency and
performance by leveraging on the opportunities that the current stringent
regulatory environment on bank lending has presented. Taking advantage of
flexibility in the Group's service and products and by closely monitoring the
capital and funding base, the Group will commit to balancing the business
growth objectives and risk appetite.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

ax

Management Discussion and Analysis & I [E & & & 9 #T «continued 2)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is derived from interest received from the provision of
various types of loan products to its customers. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2015 was about HK$63.26 million, representing an increase of
approximately 18.59% as compared with that of the same period last year
which was about HK$53.35 million. Such growth was primarily attributable
to the growth in average loan balance which was the results of the Group's
effort in expanding loan portfolio, following the completion of the Rights Issue
in February 2015 and April Placing in May 2015. In this respect, the Group's
average loan balance increased by approximately 26.40% to approximately
HK$402.14 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to
approximately HK$318.15 million in the corresponding period in 2014.

Bt %5 O BE
i 28

AEBENYRREMETEFPFRHSEERERM
WEHFAE - 2T —RAF+t-A=1+—HI
FEMI Y 563,260,000 7T © BWEFR AL
53,350,000/8 LG 1 4718.59% » Wz mHE B
HRASEER-Z—AF-_AEAHBEER=Z
—AFRARKMAREEFEEB I HRERA
A RMETFHERBEEN - BEAL - AE
EMFHERGERNEE-_T—AF+-_A=+
— B IEFE 49402,140,000 7T - B = F — [N A
H149318,150,000/% 7T #8 £t 38 11 £926.40% ©

Comparison of Revenues from Secured and
Unsecured Loans in 2014 and 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 [ & & & 9 HT «continued #)

Revenue breakdown

E—EHEMEERRAF

tax

KiEnE

2015 2014
—E—hF —T—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
T#ET FABT

Unsecured loans EIRHAER
Personal loans (FPNEEN 38,860 24,198
Corporate loans TEER 4,395 3,212
Foreign domestic workers loans INEREBIER 7,566 8,263
Sub-total Mgt 50,821 35,673

Secured loans FHRAER
First property mortgage loans FE—MERBER 4,132 6,625
Subordinated property mortgage loans FE—MERIBEX 8,213 11,030
Other secured loans HEMBEEBER 99 19
Sub-total Mgt 12,444 17,674
Total @t 63,265 53,347

Net interest margin

The Group recorded a lower net interest margin of approximately 15.04%
for the year ended 31 December 2015, compared to approximately 15.82%
for the corresponding period in 2014. In respect of unsecured loans, the net
interest margin decreased from approximately 15.95% for the year ended 31
December 2014 to approximately 15.66% for the year ended 31 December
2015. Meanwhile, net interest margin in respect of secured loans also
decreased from approximately 15.56% for the year ended 31 December 2014
to approximately 12.96% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The decrease in overall net interest margin was primarily due to the Group's
pricing strategy in response to the low interest rate environment of the
competitive money lending industry.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 & & 58 & 2 W (continued %)

Net interest margin

BERE

2015 2014
—E—AEF —T—mF

Unsecured loans \IRAER
Individuals @A 14.88% 15.19%
Foreign domestic workers INERERET 47.87% 47.18%
Corporations i 9.22% 6.87%

Secured loans FHREEXR
Individuals 18 A 12.24% 14.94%
Corporations 2 17.53% 19.20%
All loans AEER 15.04% 15.82%
Unsecured loans IR E R 15.66% 15.95%
Secured loans BEAER 12.96% 15.56%

Other income and gains Hfth i N B U 2%

The Group’s other income and gains mainly comprises income from fees
received in relation to its money lending business, bank interest income
derived from bank deposit, rental income and fair value gains on investment
properties. Other fee income mainly includes extension fee for extension of
first loan repayment dates beyond the original due date calculated at the
effective interest rate of the loans. In relation to rental income, although the
amount is relatively low as compared to the Group’s interest income derived
from loans, such income has provided steady cash flow, forming part of the
Group’s business strategies and activities. Details of other income and gains
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. Other income
and gains (excluding fair value gains on investment properties) increased
from approximately HK$1.49 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
to approximately HK$2.14 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
attributable mainly to the gain on asset disposal of the Group and rental

income growth.
In addition to the other income and gains mentioned above, the Group

recorded a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$287,000 for
the year 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I [E 5 & & 9 HT «continued #)

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses mainly comprise employment expenses
and occupancy costs for its offices and branches. Employment expenses
include directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and bonuses, mandatory
and voluntary provident fund contributions, employees’, directors’ and officers’
insurance, etc. Occupancy costs include rental expenses and management fees,
government rent and rates and utilities. Administrative expenses also include
repair and maintenance, general insurance expenses, and depreciation charges,

etc.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s administrative expenses
recorded a decrease of approximately 5.23% to approximately HK$18.53
million when compared to approximately HK$19.55 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 mainly due to the decrease of depreciation charges
following the disposal of certain assets.

Administrative expenses

TTBRAX
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TBRX
2015 2014
—B-EF —E-lEF
HK$'000 HK$000
TFHET T T
Employment expenses EERX 15,565 15,745
Occupancy costs GERZ BN 1,770 1,800
Depreciation charges hes 733 1,510
Repair and maintenance and others HEREREMAZ 330 331
Insurance Rig & 131 165
Total ast 18,529 19,551

Other operating expenses

The Group's other operating expenses mainly comprise impairment allowance
on loans receivable, advertising and promotion expenses, legal and professional
fees and other general expenses.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

ax

Management Discussion and Analysis & I [E & & & 9 #T «continued 2)

As compared to approximately HK$7.42 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2015 increased to approximately HK$17.13 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the higher impairment allowance for loans receivable on
individual assessment of approximately HK$7.63 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 compared with approximately HK$1.48 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Impairment allowance for loans receivable on
individual assessment was relatively low in 2014 mainly due to a reversal of
provision for impairment of certain loans receivable of HK$8.45 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014. This was stated in the announcement of
positive profit alert of the Company dated 10 March 2015.

Other operating expenses

Hitb EERX

Impairment allowance for loans receivable on & Bl 5T {5 & U & 5% 6l (& B &

HEemtmBEzE—_T—NFE+=-A=+—H
IEFE#7,420,0008 TEMEBE_T—AF+
ZA=+—HBIEFE 417,130,000 7T - E1EE
ZEARBERFHERERRERREREREEZ
T-mME+= A=+ —H ¥ E 41,480,000 7T
BNEHE-_T—HAF+-_A=+—ALFEY
7,630,000/ 7L FT 5K o {51 5T 15 & W B KOk 1 8 £
RZZE-—NFRUBE FZaREE=F—N
F+ZA=+ALFEETRBEZRERE
618,450,000 LT B - BEAE RN ARAF B
AT AF-A+TENEIEANEEAL -

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FiB T

individual assessment 7,632 1,476
Impairment allowance/(recovery) for loans ERIHERETORE

receivable on collective assessment BE (U E) 600 (1,855)
Advertising and promotion expenses BERHEERAX 1,600 2,461
Legal and professional fees EERBEEXER 2,303 1,243
Other general expenses Hih—wHx 4,994 4,094
Total @t 17,129 7,419
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M t Discussion and Analysis & I8 & =1 ia & 9O 4T

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs comprise interest payments for loans from
independent third party lenders and banks and mortgage loans from banks
with collaterals on its buildings, investment properties and motor vehicle.
Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 decreased from
approximately HK$3.77 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
approximately HK$3.53 million. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due
to the decrease in financial assistance from independent third party lenders

for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Finance costs

MHBER

NEENMKEBERBEBLE = REARET
BFURNEET  REMERAEERTFER
TEDMNZBERNFNEBER - UBERRERE
—E—NFE+-A=+—HILFE 43,770,000
TRLVEHE-Z—AF+_A=+—HLEE
#93,530,0008 7T - MK ER BRI EEHRBES
T-RAF+ A=+ BLEFEXEBIE=H
WEAR TR RTE -

MBEER
2015 2014
—E—AF —ET—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#EIT FHB T
Interest on bank loans RITERF B 1,464 1,261
Interest on other loans E B A B 2,047 2,494
Finance lease charges REHEER 23 15
Total st 3,534 3,770

Profit for the year

As a result of above, a profit attributable to owners of the Company
slightly decreased from approximately HK$25.00 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 to approximately HK$24.87 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. Meanwhile, the net profit margin was slightly lower at
approximately 39.32% for the year ended 31 December 2015 (31 December
2014: 46.86%).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group financed its operations
by (i) cash flow from operating activities; (ii) funding through issuance of
equity shares; and (iii) funding by way of loans and/or credit facilities from
independent third parties and banks.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$171.66 million (2014: HK$40.05 million), including bank and cash balances
of approximately HK$28.33 million (2014: HK$7.13 million). The current ratio,
being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 14.63
times as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 1.48 times). The increase in the current
ratio was mainly due to the decrease of financial assistance from independent
third party lenders and banks.

F 7 it Fl

EREDRE  ARABEBEABERENEEHE=
T—NFE+=A=+—HI1EFE 425,000,000
TEHRIEHE-_TE—AF+-_A=+—AH1t
F 5 #924,870,0008 T - Ak HE-_T—AHF
TZA=+—HLEFE  EBRAFNEHRLEDN
3932% (ZZE—ME+-A=+—H":46.86%) °

RYBER  MBERERRIRFEE

HEZZ-—AF+-_A=+—HILEE £&H
ETIMSHARXEERFES (VK2 EH
FERESRE: (NBBBETEZRMODBE  Kii)
BRBUEZFRRANERE REERE -

R-_ZE—RE+-A=+—8B A&£EHR
B EFE YD A171,660,0008 T (= Z — [0 F -
40,050,000 7t)r BIERITRIB & & B L
28,330,000/ Jt (= & — U %F : 7,130,000/ 7T) °
RZZE—RAF+-A=+—R8  "RILRER
BEBRURBBENL RN A1463F(ZZ—N
F o148 c RBLRLEATZANKREBILE
EHREARRITHBEZIER DT -
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 & & 58 & 2 W (continued %)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group's investment properties relate to its properties at (i) Units 901-902,
9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong; (i) Unit 903, 9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux
Hong Kong (newly leased in 2015) and (iii) Units 905-908,
Far East Consortium Building, 121

Road Central,
9th Floor,
Hong Kong which are being leased out to independent third party tenants.

Des Voeux Road Central,

The carrying amount is revalued at the end of each reporting period by
independent professionally qualified valuers. The aggregate carrying amount
of investment properties increased from HK$45.40 million as at 31 December
2014 to HK$63.90 million as at 31 December 2015. Such increase was due to
appreciation of the market value of the investment properties and the carrying
amount from the newly leased property (ii) above.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

On 28 December 2015, the Group disposed the entire interest in its subsidiary,
Limited at a consideration of HK$1,079,266. The Group
recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$286,818. Details of the

In Industrial Co.,

disposal are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
than that, there has been no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies. Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Business
Review and Prospects” on page 6 of this annual report, there was no specific
plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2015.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015,
December 2014: 53 staff).
December 2015 (including directors’ emoluments) was approximately HK$15.37

the Group employed a total of 44 staff (31
Total remuneration for the year ended 31

million (31 December 2014: HK$15.58 million). The Company’s remuneration
policies are formulated on the basis of performance, qualifications and
experience of individual employee and making reference to the prevailing
market conditions. The remuneration packages of the Group comprise
monthly fixed salaries, medical insurance, contributions to statutory mandatory
provident fund scheme to employees, share option scheme and directors’
bonus shares scheme etc. Discretionary year-end bonus based on individual
performance will also be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for

their contributions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 [E 5 58 & 2 3T (continued #)

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged its property at Units 901—
903, 9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong for a 15-year mortgage installment loan of drawdown value of
HK$11.25 million, whereby the outstanding amount of the said mortgage loan
was approximately HK$9.17 million as at 31 December 2015 and approximately
HK$9.79 million as at 31 December 2014.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus
net debt, was not applicable as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014:
18.58%) mainly due to the decrease in financial assistance from independent
third party lenders and banks.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business in Hong Kong.
As the revenue and cost of business are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the exposure to the risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the
Group is minimal. Hence, no financial instrument for hedging was employed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group’'s contingent liabilities are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Group's event after the reporting period are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

FEEHEEMIPE

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H AEEEHHEN
REBEEHETI1215 R RER KEIE01-903=
I3 o ABUSIREVE A11,250,00058 7T ~ AHIS
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RZE—RF+=A=+—H#%E9,170,000% T -
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BT o
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YAEB(ZZE—MFE+=-A=+—H:18.58%),
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BEERD -

BE 5 & g

AEBETERBBUENEES - AREB RS
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AN RARERSR TAETE M -
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531 °
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report &%

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2015. This report highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Company and for
safeguarding the shareholders’ interests.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company has complied with all code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation of the Board

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of Executive and Non-executive Directors and is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions; and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board is also responsible for collectively approving appointment,
removal or reappointment of Board members and auditor and the adoption
of any changes in accounting policies and practices; and reviewing the
remuneration of the Directors. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the Executive Directors and senior management of the
Company who meet on a regular basis to review the financial results and
performance of the Group and make financial and operational decisions
for the implementation of strategies and plans approved by the Board. The
Board also communicates with shareholders and regulatory bodies and makes
recommendation to shareholders on final dividend and the declaration of any
interim dividend.

Annual Report 2015

RIFEER ETRRNE18441% - EFFMAR
EHE_T-AFFT_A=+-RALFENLD
FEORE - ARMEBAARANTIEZLEER
B

EEERRESR

ARBHBANERRBRKFNEEESR - BEERE
TERABNECEERERAYRARANER R
RERREREZWEE -

BEEEMM BE_ZT-AF+-_A=1+—H
LFEER - ARBEFT A B ZER LW R BRI+
IENEEERTRRTA(EEE GTADM
— P17 AR ST

ESHNESHKXD

ARRERMEFRETESFRH2RTTH - H
BRTBREIZER LW R BIE5.4816 = 55.671F
F#zcR25E8 - KRE2BERELAREN
% REHYERERBEE_ZT-—HF+-_A=+
—BIEFE-—BETARAMRANBHEESE
TRHFXGZRHERNRERIRT TR - FAX
NREAEEFREFEREN -

EEE
EFENREAREE

E=EQREEEZEREER  BERTEENIE
HITEREZHETYELRE - EFZGBAEHNER
SENEHER BETMMEASEBENEAR
5 EEREENRARAKSENBRREREZRE
NRERESHEMCETHRE -EFEST AR
AR EEETTRERRBANEE  BRRE
B HEE RS BT S 1B P A A RT A A
NEEHM EFSGCEBARRNTEERS
MEREREATE AR  MERSGEHET
ERRANARBNMBEELRE  AEIKE
ERHENRBERAZNETHELRMBEREER
R-BEFZFNAEUERRREERBER UKk
SR H B B R AT T P H AR B O B ) AR SR AE



E—EHEMEERRAF

Corporate Governance Report 1& % & A ¥ 5 (continued #)

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the strategic development of the
Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year on a quarterly basis with
notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance. For additional Board
meetings which require discussion and resolution of significant issues arising
during the operation of the Company, notice is given in a reasonable time in
advance. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and senior management and Compliance Officer who are responsible
for ensuring the compliance of the Company with the GEM Listing Rules and
advising the Board on compliance matters. Directors are also provided with
access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying out
their obligations as Directors of the Company, at the expense of the Company.
According to the GEM Listing Rules, any directors and their associates who are
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed
transactions or issues to be discussed in the Board meetings shall abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions and are not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings.

Before each Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent out to all Directors at
least 3 days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to allow the
Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that are required for
discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors to make
informed decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and relevant
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are sent to all Directors 3
days or such other period as agreed before each Board meeting. The Company
Secretary is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to Directors for comments within a reasonable time

after each meeting and the final version is open for their inspection.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report 1 % & )8 R & (continued )

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit committee
meetings, nomination committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings
and general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in
the following table:

Board committee

Name of Directors meeting

ExE ERZEET

EEnE iR
Number of meetings held BITEHRXY 11
Number of meetings attended/ EEeZiE/

number of meetings held BITEHENRNE

Executive Directors BITES
Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) BN (EE) 9/11
Tsang Yan Kwong B 11/1
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB 4 %)
Leung Wai Hung RAE T 11/11
Ho Siu Man ] & 81 9/11
Non-executive Director ERTESE
Chan Lai Yee PREE 5 10/11
Independent Non-executive BIEMIT
Directors =
Lee Kin Fai ey 11/11
Tai Man Hin Tony & EF 11/11
Yu Wan Hei REE 11/1

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” from pages 25 to
28 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules that the Board includes at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors, which represents at least one-third of the Board; and at least one
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. And
there is no relationship among members of the Board and the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Company has also received, from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
them to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report 1& % & A ¥ 5 (continued #)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held separately by two different individuals to ensure a clear division between
their responsibilities and independence. The separation ensures a balance of
power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.
The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), whose
responsibility is to manage the Board to ensure its effectiveness in all aspects
by providing strategic and business direction. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, who is responsible for the Company’s day-
to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer also focuses
on implementing objectives, strategies and policies approved and delegated
by the Board.

Non-Executive Directors

Under the Code Provision A.4.1 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. Each of the Non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of two years.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment and they are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain informed and
relevant, they have participated in continuous professional development for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skill. During the year under review, the Company has provided updates
and coordinated training on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements to the Directors.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

The Board is responsible for the appointment of any potential new directors
and the nomination of directors which are being proposed by the nomination
committee for re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM"). In accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and following the change of domicile of
the Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda effective from 5 February
2015 (“Change of Domicile”), the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws”), the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board, whom is subject to retirement and re-election
at the first AGM after his appointment.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report 1 % & )8 R & (continued )

One of the Executive Directors is engaged on a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of six years. Other Executive Directors are engaged
on service contracts with the Company for a term of three years. The Company
has also issued a letter of appointment to each of the Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors for a term of two year subject
to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance with the Article of

Association and following the Change of Domicile, the Bye-Laws.

In accordance with the Article of Association and following the Change of
Domicile, the Bye-Laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after
their appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

With pursuant to the Article of Association and following the Change of
Domicile, the Bye-Laws, at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director
throughout the meeting at which he retires.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The committee currently comprises three Independent
Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony and

Mr. Yu Wan Hei. The Chairman of the committee is Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony,

Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Lee Kin Fai,

an Independent Non-executive Director. The Group has complied with Rule
5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the committee comprises a minimum of
three Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom is an Independent Non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director. The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Company.

The audit committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31 December
2015 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in the paragraph
headlined “Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance” under the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 17 of this annual

report.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the financial year, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's
quarterly, interim and annual financial results; the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures; and discussed the internal
control system with the management to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system. The committee
has, save for the relevant issues as required, made recommendations to
the Board on the reappointment of the external auditor after reviewing the
scope of work offered, taking into account the remuneration and terms of

engagement.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The committee currently comprises one Executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Sin, Mr. Lee Kin Fai,
Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony and Mr. Yu Wan Hei. The Chairman of the committee
is Mr. Sin, an Executive Director. The primary function of the nomination
committee is to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board regarding the identification of suitable
candidates for appointment as Directors, appointment or re-appointment of
a succession planning for Directors and assessment of the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in
the paragraph headlined “Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance”
under the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 17 of this
annual report.

During the financial year, the nomination committee has assessed and reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well as the independence
of Independent Non-executive Director. The nomination committee has
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors and other

relevant issues.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013 which
sets out the approach to diversity on the Board. The Company aims to
build and maintain a Board with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills,
experiences, background, gender, age and other qualities of Directors. The
nomination committee will discuss and agree annually measurable objectives
for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. The nomination committee will review the policy on a regular
basis and will discuss any revision that may be required, and recommend any
proposed changed to the Board for approval.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report 1 % & )8 R & (continued )

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. The committee currently comprises one Executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Sin, Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Mr. Tai Man
Hin Tony and Mr. Yu Wan Hei. The Chairman of the committee is Mr. Lee Kin Fai,
an Independent Non-executive Director. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group,
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments and ensure none of its Directors or any of

their associates will determine his/her own remuneration.

The remuneration committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in
the paragraph headlined “Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance”
under the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on page 17 of this

annual report.

During the financial year, the remuneration committee has met to determine
the remuneration policy and structure; and make recommendations to the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior management in
assessing their performance; and approve the relevant terms of Executive
Directors’ service contracts, save for the relevant issues as required.

Credit Committee

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of better
management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of the credit
committee are responsible for, among other things, approving and overseeing
the Company’s credit policy and monitoring the Company’s loan portfolio. The
credit committee comprises three members, being Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, Mr.
Leung Wai Hung (from January 2016 onwards), Mr. Wong Yu Shun Billy and
Mr. Sin, the Chairman of the committee.

Compliance Committee
A compliance committee was established in 2010 to ensure its strict
compliance with the Money Lenders Ordinance. The compliance committee

currently comprises five members, being Ms. Ho Siu Man, Ms. Chan Lai Yee,
Mr. Lee Kin Fai, Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony and Mr. Yu Wan Hei.

The compliance committee meeting is held on a quarterly basis for reviewing
matters regarding to the compliance with the Money Lenders Ordinance. The
Compliance Policy and Manual which governing the Company compliance matters
in relation to the Money Lenders Ordinance, the GEM Listing rules as well another
relevant regulations has been adopted and approved on the Listing Date.
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Corporate Governance Report 1& % & A ¥ 5 (continued #)

During the year, the compliance committee held four meetings to review and
monitor the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance and its
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate governance
report; the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; and the code of conduct and compliance manual
of the Group. During the review period, the compliance committee has no
material findings in the compliance issues of the Company but has made several
suggestions towards it and the Company has acted on the recommendations
from the compliance committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for
each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards. The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 106 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an Executive Director and a full time employee of
the Company. During the year under review, the Company Secretary has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
provided by RSM Hong Kong, the external auditor of the Company amounted
to HK$0.65 million. In addition, an approximately HK$0.63 million was charged
for non-audit services consisting mainly of acting as a reporting accountant

for rights issues, taxation services and interim review.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining an adequate and effective internal
control system of the Company to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and
the Company’s assets. In order to maintain a sound internal control system, the
Company has established and maintained stringent internal control procedures.

The Company’s senior management has regularly evaluated the internal control
procedures in order to prevent and detect any internal control procedural
errors. They are also responsible for reviewing all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions and reporting of any
failure of or deficiency in the internal control system.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report 1 % & )8 R & (continued )

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure of the Group's
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing investor
relations with the Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www:.firstcredit.com.hk”
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where the Group's

as a

business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.
Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 909-911, 9th Floor, Far East
Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to
admin@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an

informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. We will endeavor
to be available at the meetings to answer any questions raised by shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholders’ interest. To do so,
the Company maintains on-going dialogue with shareholders to communicate
with them and encourage their participation through AGM or other general
meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by post for the shareholders’
meetings. Notice of meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and postal
voting form. All registered shareholders are entitled to attend annual and
extraordinary general meetings, provided that their shares have been recorded
in the Register of Members.

Pursuant to the Article of Association and following the Change of Domicile,
the Bye-Laws, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general
meetings, and shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Act.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written
enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests
in respect of their rights as mentioned above to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong or via email as set out in the above section headed
“Communications with Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations”.

Annual Report 2015

HRRERREERFEERRE
H6 17

ExgAE BURARHHEBEARBEENSH
BREREEEEFORENRERR R IR
EHAEBEERRANRIEAOTH o 1o - pLa
ARBMBERREREERRIEFHERE
EHEME AHRETBRREEZ -

A2 B — 8 48 uh Twww firstcredit.com.hk] ¥E
HEBRAEREEAEEBNTE  ARUEB
ZHRUGBEEAEENEBERREE BB
BER - CEEREHAREMER BRREREK
BEENMEBEEMNER NABEEFTEEZELRAF
REBNFTEEEMBCLUEREAREESD
NRIKERER KEIEI-INE)REEBE
[admin@firstcredit.com.hk] o 2~ 5135 2% - 5t A B8
EHREFZEHR -

EEERA ALARRAGRH—AESEEE
HERREESIRER - ARABENLEA
& (2% 1R SRR U e £ (A P

Bz RAEF

RERREEEAAFNEE - RERZBEH
ARAFHBEEBRRRFBE  TEBEFHER
REFREHHEMBERAGLEAARFNER - &
MABESAAECRRFERRASBE - A
EREEEEAAE  RENMRIRZUALRBER
BERIE - IAMRFRO BN REMANE LK
ROEREFERRBFRERBREHIAE -

RBABSEMYARBMEORFAME - E
EGURERREE N AR EARBRRER A
g EAREZ2RAMBENIRARE T
BAR(BEARARFABRRAGLRENE) +5
ZHRRREMHRAEREBAESTTRAR
AWEZHEMER  BEREEZSERBRER
ARE UNEEEHERTEANEAER: A%
REENESZEREMQOMEANET - WE2
Bo+t—QNEAR EE2RERERERZAEN
B AR 2 ZRALATRRBAREF743) FEH
BXBAAE -

BRABRERNEETG R ZENERAAERL
ABFEARRA - AW EXTHEBRRRKE ER
FBERMEBREERE —BRFAE BRRA/KES
LFREREN 2 EALERBFEARTAREE
WEZ2LEME  IUNEBHAMELER -



E—EHEMEERRAF

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EXRSREREBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 58, is an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board. He joined the Group in December 2006 and was appointed as
a Director in March 2009. He is also the founder of the Group, a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Further, Mr. Sin is also the chairman
and non-executive director of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (stock code: 08228) whose shares are listed on GEM. Mr. Sin is
responsible for overseeing the operation, formulating market strategies and
ensuring the loan quality of the Group. Mr. Sin spent approximately 32 years
and acquired extensive experience in the banking and finance field including
internal audit, finance, risk management and business. Mr. Sin obtained a
master degree in business administration from the Oklahoma City University,
USA, a certified diploma in accounting and finance from the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants, a diploma in law from City University,
London, United Kingdom and a bachelor of Laws (LL.B) from Manchester
Metropolitan University. Mr. Sin is an associate of the Institute of Bankers
and the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a fellow of the Association of
Taxation and Management Accountants. Mr. Sin has entered into a director’s
service contract with the Company on 19 December 2012, for a fixed term of
six years. Details of which is set out in the paragraph headlined “Directors’
Service Contracts” under the section headed “Directors’ Report” to page 30
of this annual report.

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, aged 50 is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007 and
was appointed a Director in April 2010. Mr. Tsang is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsang is responsible for supervising the overall
operation and management of the Group. He has extensive experience in the
finance field through his working experience in the finance sector for over
25 years specialising in money lending industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a master
degree of business from the University of Newcastle, Australia and a diploma
in management studies jointly from Lingnan University and The Hong Kong
Management Association.

Mr. Leung Wai Hung, aged 41, is an executive Director and the company
secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in April 2007 and was
appointed as a Director in April 2010. He is also a director of all subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Leung is responsible for overseeing the loan approval,
collection matters and company secretarial matters of the Company. He has
over 18 years' extensive experience in banking and financial field. Mr. Leung
obtained a bachelor degree of business administration (with honours) from
Lingnan University and a master degree of corporate finance and a master
degree of corporate governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Leung is also an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Parast

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management % £ K S A B2 & 7 B IF (continued )

Ms. Ho Siu Man, aged 41, is an executive Director and the compliance officer
of the Company. She joined the Group in July 2007 and was appointed as a
Director in April 2010. She is also a director of all subsidiaries of the Company.
Not only is Ms. Ho being responsible for supervising the administrative and
accounting matters of the Group, she also assists in managing the Group's
operation. Ms. Ho has acquired extensive experience in the finance field
through her devotion in the finance sector for over 22 years. Ms. Ho obtained
with a bachelor degree of financial services (with honours) from Edinburgh
Napier University and a master of corporate governance degree from the Open
University of Hong Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chan Lai Yee, aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in January 2013. Ms. Chan has over 20 years of experience in the field of
accounting and financial management and previously worked in various listed
and unlisted groups. She holds a master degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited (stock code: 01082), a company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from March 2013 to
November 2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Kin Fai, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a master degree in business
administration from the Manchester Business School of University of
Manchester in the United Kingdom. He is also fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee is an independent
non-executive director of China Demeter Investments Limited (formerly known
as Oriental Unicorn Agricultural Group Limited) (stock code: 08120), whose
shares are listed on GEM. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Oriental City Group Holdings Limited (currently known as China Smartpay
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08325), a company whose shares are

listed on GEM, from March 2011 to May 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management & £ K S A B2 B 7 B F (continued )

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2014. Mr. Tai obtained a bachelor of business
administration degree in accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master of business administration degree from The
University of Manchester, the United Kingdom. Mr. Tai is an associate member
of each of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tai has over 15
years of experience in the accounting and commercial field. He also acts as
a chief financial officer and a company secretary of China New Economy
Fund Limited (stock code: 00080) whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and a company secretary of Zhongtian International
Limited (stock code: 02379) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He acted as an independent non-executive director of Finsoft
Corporation (currently known as Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 08018), whose shares are listed on GEM, from September 2013 to
May 2015 and an independent non-executive director of China New Economy
Fund Limited from October 2013 to February 2014. During the period from
January 2011 to May 2014, he acted as the financial controller and company
secretary of Sunley Holdings Limited (currently known as CNQC International
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 01240) whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Wan Hei, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in October 2013. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor of business
administration degree in accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master of science degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yu has over 16 years
of experience in the accounting and financial management field and previously
worked in various listed and unlisted groups. He acted as the company
secretary and the financial controller of Oriental City Group Holdings Limited
(currently known as China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited) (stock code:
08325) whose shares are listed on the GEM from January 2013 to February
2014. Currently he is the financial controller of Jun Yang Financial Holdings
Limited (“Jun Yang Financial”) (stock code: 397), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

BXHRE 38 RN NF=-AEZTA
BYUIERTES - BEERBEBEREAREERT
HMEBRE2L(GT2) 2N TRERSHHEX
EENTIEHEEBLEN - MAEERE B LA
ARERAEERBERTFTFEtHAENNBES
B OURHFFARGHMASEFREE - HELE
EEARBEAEEEBISFLR o HWINETE
REATEREMARFEIEEREGR AT (K
5% 1 00080) By BT 75 48 BE e N B R E - DA R
RFERETRRPRBEEZBRERAE (KK
REE: 023799 ARIME - RZT—=FNAZE
ZT—RFRA - K ABIEIR ETARE B
AEI(RBRAEVRBEERAR AT (KRG
R 08018) M BUFMNITES SN _FT—=
FHAEZZ-—NF-F RATEHLERE
BRARMBIYIENTES - RZT——F—A
E-T-NERAYPH BREHEBIAERL
MARFAZERERAR(RBAS ERHBEER
BRAF)REHD AR - 01240) B BF 75 42 B K R &)
g o

REBERE 4 RZT=FtAEZAA
BUERTEE - REENRBEMRKRBERT
BERS L (BB UREEBEIRER
RMEtRBEBRETRMU - REERFHFARES
MAEERGEREESHMASHEGH -
RELFEABICFEIARUBERLR 28
REEETRIFLETEBTE BER _FT—=
F-RAE_Z-NF_ALFRAZERLETARR
BAEEZERERARCGRBEATEN BEE
ERAER AR (B K5 08325) M R A E &
MHEE - REFBIAER ETARNESG SR
ZRARAR(EB 2R DM R 397) K

BHEE -

—E-AEFH

27



28

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Parast

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management % £ K S A B2 & 7 B IF (continued )

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Yu Shun Billy, aged 43, is a senior manager of a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in July 2007 and is responsible for
the management of the Group’s branch offices. Prior to that, Mr. Wong has
acquired experience in the finance field through his working experience in
the finance sector for approximately 16 years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wong was a branch manager in Wing Hang Credit Limited from October 1997
to July 2007. Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor of arts (general) degree
from the Laurentian University in Ontario Canada in October 1997.

Mr. Wong Wing Hei Andy, aged 36, is a senior manager of a subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in February 2008 and is
responsible for the management of the Group’s branch offices and overseeing
the marketing department. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was an assistant manager
in Wing Hang Credit Limited from September 2001 to August 2007 and an
assistant credit approval manager in Dah Sing Bank Limited from August 2007
to February 2008. Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor of science degree in
accounting and finance from the University of London in August 2011. He also
obtained a professional diploma in marketing management in the Hong Kong
Management Association in August 2002.

Ms. Chan Mang Lee, aged 31, is a manager of a subsidiary of the Company
and a company secretarial officer of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group
in July 2007 and she is responsible for assisting in general operations of the
Group and the company secretarial matters of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Chan graduated with a bachelor of science (honor) degree in
construction economics and management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 2007. Ms. Chan also obtained a master of corporate
governance degree from the Open University of Hong Kong in June 2010.
She is also an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Directors’ Report EE&#

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally is conducting money lending business solely in Hong
Kong through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to the
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group also derives other income and gains from time to time, namely
rental income and income from available-for-sale investments, as disclosed
under paragraph headed “Other income and gains” on page 10 of this annual

report.
RESULTS

The Group's result for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

consolidated financial statements from pages 41 to 45 of this annual report.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past three years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary”
on page 107 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the

audited consolidated financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Article of Association
and following the Change of Domicile, the Bye-Laws or the laws in the Cayman
Islands or in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s property, plant and equipment during

the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESERVE

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements and

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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Directors’ Report % % i& tl:lb (continued #&)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity holders comprising the share premium, contributed surplus and capital
reserve less accumulated losses, amounted to approximately HK$323.72
million.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung

Ms. Ho Siu Man

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Lai Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Kin Fai

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony

Mr. Yu Wan Hei

In accordance with the Article of Association and following the Change of
Domicile, the Bye-Laws, any director appointed by the Board to fill casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible

for re-election.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out from pages 25 to 28 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Sin has entered into a Service Contract with the Company for a fixed term
of six years and other executive Directors have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years (the “Service Contracts”).
The Service Contracts, respectively, were thereafter continuous unless and until
(i) the termination by either party thereto giving no less than three months’
prior written notice; or (i) the executive Director not being re-elected as a
Director or being removed by shareholders at general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Article of Association and following the Change of
Domicile of the Company from the Cayman lIslands to Bermuda, the Bye-Laws.
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The non-executive Directors and each of the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term of two years subject to retirement,
re-election and removal in accordance with the Article of Association and
following the Change of Domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
to Bermuda, the Bye-Laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Directors had material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which

the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's emolument
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results,

individual performance and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, Ms. Chan Lai Yee, a non-executive Director, is a
senior management of a company where one of its subsidiaries is principally
engaged in money lending business.

During the annual review, the independent non-executive Directors have no
material matters to disclose relating to compliance and enforcement of the
non-competition undertaking of Best Year Enterprises Limited (“Best Year”),
Enhance Pacific Limited (“Enhance Pacific”) and Mr. Sin under the deed of
non-competition.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Long position In Shares subject to The
ordinary Shares

EEREETHEASREG 4
FRBEESFPHERRRE

m:%fﬁi+—ﬂi+fa~§$&$“ﬂ?%
TERABRAARI R EREEZE(EERESH
%Ewﬂﬂ“ﬁ&%%wﬂD%W$MWM
HEROERESTPHEAEREZFRAEKHE
XVEETR F85 HA M AN ) B 22 BT /1 2
(BREESREESFLAERINZSEXEE
EERAEAENEZLAR) ABEBEHFLH
BEPIE32MG BB ERZIEA L s fh e
Bz IR A R LR AI$5.46% £5.671%
BMEARNBI M RXHERAT

RAEAEM#ER

Approximate
Number of underlying percentage of The
Company’s Issued

Pre-IPO Share Option share capital

Name of Director Capacity held Scheme (Note 1) (Note 2)
BRAHBERN
BIREES RN LEXATFERTERE
1A B 9 & B B E S
EEna 5 FifsfEaRmEze (B &E1) (Bt&E2)
Mr. Sin Interest of controlled corporations 889,056,000
(Note) Shares (Note 3) — 24.50%
R E PR A B R A (PR 889,056,000
& A& 17 (P 7E3)
Note: B 2
1. The number of shares stated in the table above is based on the latest notice of 1. FRAMBROBEDNENBBEEER -2 —1F

disclosure of interests filed by the relevant Director as at 31 December 2015.

2. The approximate percentage is calculated based on the enlarged issued share
capital of the Company upon the completion of the Second Proposed Rights Issue,
being 3,628,800,000 Shares.

3. Among these 889,056,000 Shares, Best Year and Enhance Pacific, both of which
were wholly owned by Mr. Sin, were interested in 849,856,000 and 39,200,000
Shares respectively. Best Year is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin. The 849,856,000
Shares in which Best Year was interested comprise (i) the 42,256,000 Shares held
by Best Year as at the 31 December 2015; (i) the 380,304,000 rights shares
which Best Year undertook to apply for pursuant to the shareholders’ undertaking;
and (i) the 427,296,000 rights shares under the Best Year underwriting
commitment. Enhance Pacific is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin. The 39,200,000 shares
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in which Enhance Pacific was interested comprise (i) the 3,920,000 shares held
by Enhance Pacific as at the 31 December 2015 and (ii) the 35,280,000 rights
shares which Enhance Pacific undertook to apply for pursuant to the shareholders’
undertaking. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Sin is deemed

to be interested in all these 889,056,000 shares.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES
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Mk 4EEEHEA ° Enhance PacificE A # &
#939,200,0000% % 1» B 1& : (i) Enhance Pacifici
—E-AF+ A=+ —H# % 3,920,000
i 19 R (ii) 1R 4% A% 3R & 3 Enhance  Pacific 4 &5 B

5 135,280,000k AR A& ) - IRIBEEBHF KB E

GOIEXVHBIEX  EEEHRBAEARE2HZE
889,056,000/ Bty R B %= ©

FERFEEAMALRIRMG - H
57l B 13 B A& % o B9 #E 2 % ¢

As at 31 December 2015, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified to \ZF-AFFTZA=1+—H BEMEFHA

any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) which had 5% or more interests in the shares and the underlying  *
shares as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (

were as follows:

Interests in the Company:

Name

k22 Vg - £

Best Year

uFF

Enhance Pacific

Enhance Pacific

Jun Yang

B

Capacity

g

Beneficial owner

BEmEa A

Beneficial owner

EmBERA

Other

H Al

ok

=

Iy

L

i

el

SEES

E\

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held
(Notes 1 & 3)

R RERKROEB
(Bt sE1%3)

849,856,000 Shares (L)
(Note 4)
849,856,000 A% % 17 (L)
(B 5£4)

39,200,000 Shares (L)
(Note 5)
39,200,0000% % 15 (L)
(B 7E5)

848,240,000 Shares (L)
(Note 6)
848,240,000 /% A% 17 (L)
(Fff 5£6)

489,240,000 Shares (S)
(Note 7)
489,240,000 % fi% 15 (S)
(B 5E7)

AR ITIA B FT ANk 2 7 - AR 1) T 4 B Bk
¥ A5% 2k JA B a3 RS SRR IR 1R 78 5 I B
GPIE3B6RATFENERMP L ELMEA
ERARFBRSTHRAERINOFHBNT

Approximate

percentage of total
issued share capital of
the Company (Note 2)
HEATNEBTRAE
WEOBMOT L

(Mt &EE2)

23.42%

1.08%

23.38%

13.48%
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Name

E- Vg - X
Jun Yang Financial

ZHor

Astrum Capital Management
Limited (“Astrum”)

MAEREBREBRDQF
(TR =83 1)

Major Harvest Investments Limited
("Major Harvest”)

s RERRLATEF)

Autumn Ocean Limited
("Autumn Ocean”)
Autumn Ocean Limited
([Autumn Ocean))

Pan Chik (“Mr. Pan")

ER(EEED
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Capacity

&1
Interest of controlled corporations

P A B #E

Other

Hith

Interest of controlled corporations

REHDRE R

Interest of controlled corporations

P A B 4

Interest of controlled corporations

P A B R

Number of Shares and
underlying shares held
(Notes 1 & 3)

Fit #% % 13 % 48 A Bz 3 BB

(Bt sE1%3)

848,240,000 Shares (L)

(Note 6)
848,240,000% % 17 (L)
(M 3%6)

489,240,000 Shares (S
(Note 7
489,240,000 % fi& 15 (S)
(P 5E7)

)
)

1,574,800,000 Shares (L)

(Note 8)
1,574,800,000 % A% 17 (L)
(Pt 5£8)

1,116,360,000 Shares (S

(Note 9
1,116,360,0000% f% 13 (S)
(B r&9)

)
)

1,574,800,000 Shares (L
(Note 8
1,574,800,000 % A% 15 (L)
(P 5£8)

)
)

1,116,360,000 Shares (S)
(Note 9)
1,116,360,0000% f% 17 (S)
GEE))

1,574,800,000 Shares (L)

(Note 8)
1,574,800,000 0% A& 15 (L)
(Bt 7£8)

1,116,360,000 Shares (S
(Note 9
1,116,360,000 % % 13 (S)
(P 5£9)

)
)

1,574,800,000 Shares (L)

(Note 8)
1,574,800,000 8% A% 17 (L)
(Pt 5£8)

1,116,360,000 Shares (S

(Note 9
1,116,360,0000% f% 15 (S)
(B r&9)

)
)

Approximate
percentage of total
issued share capital of
the Company (Note 2)
HEATNEBITRAE
BEOHBHE S
(Pi#5E2)

23.38%

13.48%

43.40%

30.76%

43.40%

30.76%

43.40%

30.76%

43.40%

30.76%
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Number of Shares and
underlying shares held

E—EHEMEERRAF

Approximate
percentage of total
issued share capital of

Name Capacity (Notes 1 & 3) the Company (Note 2)
EXAFERTRSE
Fit #% % 13 % 48 A Bz 3 BB BEHWMOE S
E1 e X s (B EE1R3) (B &E2)
Liu Ming Lai Lorna (“Ms. Liu") Spouse interest 1,574,800,000 Shares (L) 43.40%
(Note 8)
BERE(EZL]) Fo {5 ## a8 1,574,800,000 % A% 153 (L)
(His8)
1,116,360,000 Shares (S) 30.76%
(Note 9)
1,116,360,000 3 B 7 (5)
(KT 5E9)
Hang Fat Capital Limited Other 359,000,000 Shares (L) 9.89%
(“Hang Fat"”) (Note 10)
EHESRARAR(EE]) Hi 359,000,000% % 17 (L)
(K 5£10)

Note 1: The number of shares stated in the table above, except that of Enhance Pacific, BE3E1 s k3% il B9 BB (Enhance PacificiE A& BN T
is based on the latest notices of disclosure of interests filed by the relevant HRNEERER —_E—hFE+_A=+—HFE
shareholders as at 31 December 2015. SRS ERA -

Note 2: The approximate percentage is calculated based on the enlarged issued share Ma2: AR IR EARNTRE A ESHE R
capital of the Company upon the completion of the Second Proposed Rights Issue, K 1% B 55 4 KB 8 17 IR 7R (BD3,628,800,000 % A%
being 3,628,800,000 Shares. )EE -

Note 3: “L"denotes a long position whilst the letter “S” denotes a short position. M3E3: (LT A > MEF[SIEAR -

Note 4: These 849,856,000 shares comprise (i) the 42,256,000 shares held by Best Year M 754 : 522-849,856,000x I BIE(NF FR T —RHF
as at the 31 December 2015; (ii) the 380,304,000 rights shares which Best Year +ZA=+—HB#F B 842,256,000 A& 15 : (i) 1R
undertook to apply for pursuant to the shareholders’ undertaking; and (iii) the 5 IR B2 R B 0F 4F 7 52 B 55 #9380,304,000 % 1 1%
427,296,000 rights shares under the Best Year underwriting commitment. B+ R (ifi) 6F 45 B0 8 7 55 T8 TN 89427,296,000 4%

HA D -

Note 5: These 39,200,000 shares comprise (i) the 3,920,000 shares held by Enhance Mt 5¥5 : £%539,200,000% f& 19 £ 45 () Enhance Pacifici
Pacific as at the 31 December 2015; (ii) the 35,280,000 rights shares which —E-AFtTZA=+—H#4E#13,920,0000% &
Enhance Pacific undertook to apply for pursuant to the shareholders’ undertaking. 55 (i) 18 45 & 35 3£ Enhance Pacific 7k 5 A 35 &

35,280,000 8% # iz iz 17

Note 6: These 848,240,000 shares represent the number of underwritten shares B 356 : 2%%848,240,000R IR 5 A B2 — W ERBIR
committed by Jun Yang, as one of the underwriters, pursuant to the underwriting EHHAE-—ZET—RA&E+-_B++HBAQT T
agreement dated 17 December 2015 and entered into among the Company, FE -MEBRESHE - AEEHRBITIHE
Best Year, Astrum and Jun Yang in relation to the Second Proposed Rights Issue i (REHRD AENRHEBKROEE - RIE
("Underwriting Agreement”). Based on the notice of disclosure of interest filed AT HIESHIEEE DSBS ERAERS
with the Stock Exchange, Jun Yang is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Jun BRNEE2ENBAR - BEZHFRBEEKRM -
Yang Financial. By virtue of the SFO, Jun Yang Financial is deemed to be interested PSR AN EEBAEREZN K MG S
in all the shares in which Jun Yang is interested. WAERELS -

Note 7: As at the 31 December 2015, Jun Yang has sub-underwritten/placed W7 R—ZE—RE+-_A=+—H EBEEZES

489,240,000 shares to various sub-underwriter/subscribers.
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Note 8: These 1,574,800,000 shares represent the number of underwritten shares
committed by Astrum, as one of the underwriters, pursuant to the Underwriting
Agreement. Based on the notices of disclosure of interest filed with the Stock
Exchange, Astrum is wholly-owned by Major Harvest, which is in turn owned as
to 80% by Autumn Ocean. Mr. Pan owns 100% of Autumn Ocean. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Pan is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Astrum is
interested. Since Ms. Liu is the spouse of Mr. Pan, Ms. Liu is also deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Astrum is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Note 9: As at the 31 December 2015, Astrum has sub-underwritten/placed 1,116,360,000
shares to various sub-underwriter/subscribers.

Note 10: Hang Fat, as one of the sub-underwriters procured by Jun Yang, has committed
to underwrite 359,000,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other corporation
or person (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who,
as at 31 December 2015, had any interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report 2= 5 & ¥} & (continued #)

As at 31 December 2015, save for (i) Mr. Sin who was the director of each of
Best Year and Enhance Pacific and (ii) Mr. Yu Wan Hei, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a director of Golden Moral Investments
Limited (which was the immediate holding company of Jun Yang) and the
financial controller of Jun Yang Financial, none of the Directors was a director
or employee of a company which had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has not
entered into any connected transaction which was subject to reporting,
annual review, announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 20% of the revenue of the Group.

As far as the Directors aware, neither the Directors nor their associates nor any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five largest customers
of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out

in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions stated in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements were connected transaction and continuing connected transaction
entered into by the Company in 2013 and 2012 respectively. The Company has
complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter

20 of the GEM Listing Rules for the related party transactions.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Directors’ Report % % %& tl:lb (continued #&)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code provisions set out
in the CG Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report
on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out from pages 16 to 24 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

At the Company’s last Annual General Meeting, RSM Nelson Wheeler was
re-appointed as auditor of the Company. On 26 October 2015 our auditor
changed the name under which it practices to RSM Hong Kong and accordingly
has signed its report under its new name.

RSM Hong Kong retires, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be
put at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report 5 3L # & i R &

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 106, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

RSM
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report ¥& 37 #% £ Al ¥ &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

21 March 2016
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income G488 RE#2ERAER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

2014
—E—mEF
Note HK$
Bt = BT
Revenue I 25 63,264,700 53,347,194
Other income and gains L N A 5,139,524 6,491,815
68,404,224 59,839,009
Administrative expenses THAX (18,528,906) (19,550,645)
Other operating expenses b EHA X (17,129,492) (7,418,664)
Profit from operations EERF 32,745,826 32,869,700
Finance costs % E R 10 (3,533,726) (3,770,123)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MHBARKZ 30 286,818 —
Profit before tax B %t wi iz A 1 29,498,918 29,099,577
Income tax expense Fris®i 12 (4,626,212) (4,101,899)
Profit for the year ERiEF 24,872,706 24,997,678
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Hih ZEUA
(OBRBLIH)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T8 E# 7B EE 2%
HIEE
Gain on property revaluation R 5,203,775 —
Total comprehensive income for the year ERE2EKANEE 30,076,481 24,997,678
HK cents HK cents
& 1l A
(Restated)
(&=75)
Earnings per share BRER
Basic BN 16 8.92 34.50
Diluted BE 16 N/A i B N/A 7~ i A

—z-nxER 4]



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position &Mk R &K

At 31 December20i5mid=F~HE+=- A=+—H

2014
—ZT—UFE
Note HK$
M 5 B TT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 17 694,850 3,364,450
Investment properties ‘A 18 63,900,000 45,400,000
Intangible assets EmVAE 19 — 792,448
Leasehold land under finance leases BMEHEOTHE L 20 15,425,168 25,296,408
Loans receivable & B 5K 22 224,107,674 223,903,767
Deferred tax assets EETIEE E 25 535,470 378,007
Total non-current assets JEmMBAEBE 304,663,162 299,135,080
Current assets mEEE
Loans receivable & B % 22 154,137,080 112,965,068
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRRE - Ee2 Kk
Hh fE R IR 1,777,971 3,665,776
Bank and cash balances RITRIB 2 EH 28,333,804 7,134,632
Current tax receivable JE L B AR B TR — 578,953
Total current assets BB E AR 184,248,855 124,344,429
Current liabilities REBER
Accruals and other payables EFHE R K
Hfh FE 5 3R 1A 1,887,363 1,866,673
Interest-bearing loans FRER 23 9,553,598 82,274,376
Finance lease payable FE {7 Rb & 7 & 38 24 — 150,000
Current tax payable JE < BN BR 7 18 1,151,062 —
Total current liabilities mEABELRE 12,592,023 84,291,049
Net current assets REBEEZFE 171,656,832 40,053,380
Total assets less current liabilities SEHBERRDER 476,319,994 339,188,460
Non-current liabilities EHEER
Finance lease payable FEfS R E M & IR 24 — 62,500
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 25 154,156 127,804
Total non-current liabilities SEmBBERE 154,156 190,304
NET ASSETS BEEE 476,165,838 338,998,156
Capital and reserves BERGEE
Share capital fi& 7 26 6,048,000 14,400,000
Reserves G 28 470,117,838 324,598,156
TOTAL EQUITY G 476,165,838 338,998,156

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016 and are signed onits WR-Z—XF=ZA-+ - HAKE=g#E T h

behalf by: THEEREXEE:
Sin Kwok Lam Tsang Yan Kwong
HEM - b 4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity GF&8#EREH &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREANEN
Property Proposed
Share Share Capital Contributed revaluation  Retained final
capital premium reserve surplus reserve profits  dividend Total
MEERH Bk
BE RHRE SFRE FANEG fE  REGRH K2 By
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 RZB—MF
—A—8 12,000,000 94,429,089 142,309,615 — — 44,905,226 2,400,000 296,043,930
Total comprehensive income for the year ~FR2E KA B3 - — — — — 24,997,678 — 24,997,678
Issue of shares on placement (note 26(a)  Bc & B 8 17 % (7
(B 3£26(a)) 2,400,000 19,200,000 — — — — — 21,600,000
Share issue expenses b — (763,452) - - - - - (763,452)
Dividend paid (note 15) BERAKE
(Bt 5£15) — — (480,000) — — — (2,400,000) (2,880,000)
Changes in equity for the year ENESEE 2,400,000 18,436,548 (480,000) — — 24,997,678 (2,400,000) 42,954,226
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—MF
1 January 2015 +-A=+-H
RZZ-1%F
—A—H 14,400,000 112,865,637 141,829,615 — — 69,902,904 — 338,998,156
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2E KA B E — — — — 5,203,775 24,872,706 — 30,076,481
Issue of shares under rights issue BEHERETRN
(note 26(c)) (Fit3£26(c) 43,200,000 59,616,000 — — — — — 102,816,000
Share premium reduction (note) & 1 )4 (B 8 &
(Fit ) — (168,878,070) — 168,878,070 — — — -
Capital reorganisation N (51,840,000) — — 51,840,000 = = = =
Issue of shares on placement (note 26(e)  BC%& By & 11k (7
(Bff 5% 26(e)) 288,000 8,006,400 — — — — — 8,294,400
Share issue expenses fR 7 3 17 — (4,019,199 = = = = — (4,019,199
Changes in equity for the year (8,352,000) (105,274,869) — 220,718,070 5,203,775 24,872,706 — 137,167,682
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+=ZA=+—-H 6,048,000 7,590,768 141,829,615 220,718,070 5,203,775 94,775,610 — 476,165,838
Note: M EE

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting held on 24
December 2014, the Company cancelled the entire amount standing to the credits of
the share premium account of the Company on the day immediately before the despatch
of certificate for fully-paid rights shares (note 26(c)) and to transfer the credits arising
from such cancellation to an account designated as the contributed surplus account of
the Company.

The certificates for the fully-paid rights shares were despatched to the then entitled
shareholders of the Company on 2 February 2015 and the credit balance of
HK$168,878,070 standing to the Company’s share premium account immediately before
such day was transferred to the contributed surplus account accordingly.

BER-F-—MNET-A-THARTHRREIIAE
PEBN—HRER  ARFARERTEHEBRRMRK
BROHBREMZBEEARRBNEERN2BERS
MHE26(0) YR EBEHEMEENERBREALD
AEERBABBENERP -

BERFHEBRBROMOBREER=_ZE—AF_A=-AFTH
FAARERAGEBMEGEBRENRE  MEZEZBA
RN AR 17 v 18 BR 69 # AR 4 $2168,878,07078 7T £ AE &
HEZHARGE -

—E-EEFEH
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z &R &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZ-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

BEx

2014
—Z—F
Note HK$
Bt = Vo
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HEEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax C: 0Pl 29,498,918 29,099,577
Adjustments for: BATRIEFE:
Depreciation e 667,596 1,439,547
Amortisation of leasehold land under BEBEANTHEE L
finance leases 64,899 70,421
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA (312) (124)
Finance costs % ER 3,533,726 3,770,123
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERERERZ
equipment (248,284) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHB AR (286,818) —
Fair value gains on investment BEMELATERE
properties (3,000,000) (5,000,000)
Net impairment loss on loans receivable EREFREEIEFE 8,599,549 10,476,299
Recoveries of loans receivable impaired W Bl B Rk (8 sk 85 1Y FE ik
or written off 5% (368,026) (10,854,707)
Operating profit before working capital EEESBHAKLE R
changes 38,461,248 29,001,136
Increase in loans receivable JE W B SR N (49,607,442) (64,879,096)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR HRIE - ke REAM
deposits and other receivables FE W R IE R L, (3G ) 1,887,805 (1,452,718)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEET & A K& A fih 1S 5K 1E
other payables #m, Gk ) 80,717 (2,920,017)
Cash used in operations LEFARS (9,177,672) (40,250,695)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEMNEH (3,027,308) (3,932,650)
Net cash used in operating activities KEXBMARSFHE (12,204,980) (44,183,345)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFIHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received B R 1T F 2 312 124
Purchase of property, plant and BEME WENERE
equipment (90,796) (184,208)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BELKENS
and equipment KB 1,851,200 —
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE— MBS RIE 30 1,079,266 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEFHELE (FTA)BES
investing activities F 2,839,982 (184,084)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #r & 3R & /it 2 K (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ—=-F

EF—EHEMEERRAF

= A n=H=El I E

2014
—ZET—mF
Note HK$
B o BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BRETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from placing of new shares it & ¥ AR 10 BT 15 5K 18 26(e) 8,294,400 21,600,000
Proceeds from rights issue AR BT 18 318 26(c) 102,816,000 =
Share issue expenses paid BERBRMDETHAS (4,019,199) (763,452)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company BEffARQAIEAE AN E — (2,880,000)
Interest-bearing loans raised FETEER 29,495,886 52,000,000
Repayment of interest-bearing loans BEHFEER (80,334,183) (41,065,616)
Repayment of finance lease payable EEENERERE (212,500) (150,000)
Interest paid EATHE (3,593,753) (3,777,863)
Net cash generated from financing REEHELERSFHE
activities 52,446,651 24,963,069
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HERELEHEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (B)iB8E 43,081,653 (19,404,360)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FEVNBESRBELEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR (14,747,849) 4,656,511
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERBFEERBRLEEDY
END OF YEAR 28,333,804 (14,747,849)
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASHAND & RELZEWEHR O
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRBESE 28,333,804 7,134,632
Bank overdrafts RITEX — (21,882,481)
28,333,804 (14,747,849)
—hFFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements % & 81 7 i R 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZ-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. On 5 February 2015, the Company was deregistered in the
Cayman lIslands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda. On the same date, the address
of its registered office changed from Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands to Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is Units 909-911, 9/F., Far East Consortium
Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B 75 ¥R 2% BJ 5F (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BFEPHMEIREETEEANE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS

(@) Applications of new and revised HKFRSs (a)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2015:

Amendment to HKAS 40 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle)

The amendment clarifies the application of HKFRS 3 and HKAS
40 in respect of acquisitions of investment property. HKAS 40
assists preparers to distinguish between investment property and
owner-occupied property, then HKFRS 3 helps them to determine
whether the acquisition of an investment property is a business
combination. The amendment had no effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 8 (Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating
segments, and clarifies that reconciliations of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets are required
only if the segment assets are reported regularly. These
clarifications had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2015. The directors anticipate that the new
and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements when they become effective. The Group is
in the process of assessing, where applicable, the potential effect
of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective in future
periods but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

List of New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,

with earlier application permitted.
(0 New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
operation during the financial year. As a result, there are changes

to presentation and disclosures of certain information in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F—EHEREBEBRAA
:Z/r\j\ /m\ Eﬁ ﬁ% i& 2% M—JL Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released revised Chapter 18 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange in relation to disclosure of financial information in
annual reports that are applicable for accounting periods ending
on or after 31 December 2015, with earlier application permitted.
The Company has adopted the amendments resulting in changes
to the presentation and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the

historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting

policies below (e.g. investment properties that are measured at fair

value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires

management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of

judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised

directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use in the
supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicle 25%
Motor yacht 12.5%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9]

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B

EF—EHEMEERRAF

ﬁ %7% i& % Izﬁ Ef (continued #%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Leases (continued)

(i)

(i)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term,
a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets over the shorter of the lease term and their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lumpsum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Leases (continued)
(iif)  Leasehold land for own use (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it
is clear that both elements are operating leases, in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets which represent motor vehicle registration mark
with indefinite useful life are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is any
indication that the motor vehicle registration mark has suffered an
impairment loss. The useful life of the motor vehicle registration
mark is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial assets
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of loans and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the carrying amount of the receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /li\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

0)

(k)

U]

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at
their fair values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligations under the contracts, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the guarantee contracts.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income on loans is recognised on an accrual basis using

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BRTBR(E)

(continued)

(m) Other payables (m) HtFERFKRIE
Other payables are stated initially at their fair values and HihBNEREVSEQXTFEAR
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Hi& R A B BRI XL 88K A5
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be 2 ERIRz T EBMAR BRI
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Sh - REZIERT - BHRB ARG BR -

(n) Equity instruments (n) ¥E&EIH
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the ARRBETZESIAERBKME
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. RIEHMREZEEITHNARAR

(0) Revenue recognition (o) WrZstESR

TR Wk EWRE AT E
A2 TRASEBEAIEGSLE
Al I B2 F) 52 MO AT B W 5 & R R
BARR ©

EROFBWA TR R A EFR A

the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts BERMNEZL e T AEHAE
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ARG KRR fﬁ & HﬁZ AWE
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the ZeMmAEREFETE - MER

financial asset. When a loan has been written down as a result R (&S 18 i O - ,%'\ WAE R

of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /ﬁ\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(1) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave

are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group to the

funds.

(iif)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of termination

benefits.

(q) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based

vesting conditions.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for

the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r 1/:|\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

(t)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit

whose impairment is being measured.
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4r /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets are impaired, based on objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows of the (group of)
financial asset(s) have been affected.

For loans receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, the Group assesses them collectively for impairment,
based on the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio, observable
changes in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for loans receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the allowance
account for loans receivable) through profit or loss. However, the
reversal must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting

period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

:Z/H_j\ /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.
Impairment allowance for loans receivable

The Group makes impairment allowance for loans receivable based on
assessments of the recoverability of the loans receivable, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
If there is objective evidence that impairment loss on loans receivable
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires significant judgement
on whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and assessing
the amount of impairment loss requires significant estimates when
determining the present value of the expected future cash flows. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the loans receivable and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been charged.

As at 31 December 2015, the impairment allowance for loans receivable
amounted to HK$6,562,045 (2014: HK$4,054,013).

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess the
fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair values,
the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation and input used are reflective of the current
market conditions.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December 2015
was HK$63,900,000 (2014: HK$45,400,000).
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.
(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying
amount of the bank and cash balances, loans and interests
receivable, deposits and other receivables, included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's
financial assets, before taking into account of collateral it holds.
Exposure to such credit risk arises primarily from its financing

activities to customers.

The Group’s credit policy specifies the credit approval, review
and monitoring processes. All new customers of the Group are
subject to account opening procedures which include financial
background checks for credit verification purpose. Credit limit
applications are guided by a set of credit principles and these
applications are subject to regular independent review. The board
of directors of the Company are responsible to ensure the credit
policies and operation manual are appropriate to the market need
and the Group’s loans department ensures the credit approval,
review and monitoring processes as per stipulated in the manual
are properly followed by the operation staff.

The Group also adopts a “two eyes” process requiring credit
approval at successively higher levels or committees depending
on, among other things, the size and nature of the proposed
transactions.

Annual Report 2015

SRl EEEE

AEEKLEPHBRSESRER 25
ERER - B E R EFEE R o ANE

EEENEREESEITAENN S
MEMBREEEENEEREZHAEEH
B RBE S RONER -

(a) EERERE

R 2mRHFTENKIER
BREE - EREBENER - 7
FAMBRARZIBVRITERREHE
ﬁ‘% EEEFREFE - R R EME
WHRENEEEASNEERAEE
EREERBRNSEREERRCRE
BEFENERR)  ZEEERR
TBREAEPIRHENBERY

AEENEERRECEREER
% BHAREZERF -AKBEME
MEFAETHPTE BEEDT
BHESWE - ARBEEENER -
EERERFUN-—ETENEER
AMERIES MR EHRFEEKLLER
BUEH  ARREESBERRE
ERERBREFMETTEFE
i 72 5= [ B 5RCA FE AR T 0 AT RT B
MEE#REZ FHREEREFER
RIFABRE BT -

REBRBRABIERIEF  RIE

(K@ BETZSOHRE RIE
CEHERESHIBATRAE

iﬁ&i,\af’ﬁﬁﬁz T HEAE o
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“r /EI\ ,\7T %% $& 2% M—JL Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit quality classification of gross loans receivable (before
impairment allowance) using the Group's credit rating system is
set out in the table below:

&R EREERE

EERE(E)

REASENEEFRRER  BK
ERGEMABRRERBIDNEE
BERNHENDT :

2014
—E—F

HK$

Vome

Performing B4 380,766,128 338,646,727
Doubtful R R 180,713 397,589
Loss B8 3,859,958 1,878,532
384,806,799 340,922,848

The Group considers all loans receivable (except for loans to
foreign domestic workers) as doubtful if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue for more than 3
months and principal, accrued interest and/or future interest may
not be fully secured by the fair value of collateral at its prevailing
market price. The Group considers the loans receivable as loss if
the repayments of principal and/or interest have been overdue for
more than 45 days for the loans to foreign domestic workers, or
have been overdue for more than 6 months for all other types
of loans receivable; and in both cases the collection of principal
and/or interest in full is improbable after taking into account the
fair values of the collateral at prevailing market prices.

Based on the above individual assessment, the loans department
of the Group proposes to the management of the Company
the amount of impairment provision to be made at least on a
monthly basis. The Group also performs collective assessment
of the loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics. The impairment provision
is made based on the historical impairment rates of receivables
with similar credit risk characteristic.

EAeR/HFNSEFTABBEB=
A mEMmZRTMETED
RFERDBREAZHEELRS &
MBS EARRAE  AEER
FIAERKERARE(MINERER
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EURERERAS R LM EERR
HBEBENEA BELEMEBRT
R EEMRRRTHEFENR
TEE FRREAS R EME
BEAAARE - NEE SR Z B EK
REE-

AR LA ERRE G AEEERE
ELBRAAARANEEEZZF
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. ZEiEMRER(E)
(@) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKEE)
Movements in the provision for impairment on loans receivable ERERREBREEDEHINET
are as follows:
Individual Collective
Lo =i
At 1 January 2014 RZE—WOE—HA—H 14,579,511 3,779,623
Charged during the year FNFHR 10,476,299 —
Written off during the year ESAE & (13,926,713) —
Reversed during the year F AR E (9,000,147) (1,854,560)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-Z—MNF+_A
=+—HBk
—E—hF—HA—H 2,128,950 1,925,063
Charged during the year FAETE 7,999,549 600,000
Written off during the year F R 8 (5,723,491) —
Reversed during the year F AR E (368,026) —
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—AHEF
+-A=+— 4,036,982 2,525,063

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has certain concentrations
of credit risk as 6% (2014: 6%) of the Group’s loans receivable
were due from the Group’s largest customer, and 25% (2014:
24%) were due from the five largest customers determined on
the same basis.

MW_ZE—RF+-_A=1+—H A&
E6% (ZZ—NF : 6%) WEKRE R
%E$%@?7ﬁ@)ﬁ AR R A%
BE B25% (ZZT—MF : 24%) 8
EUWE R Xaﬂk%ﬁ MANEE
GE—TETREMNEESETRR -

Collateral is obtained in respect of mortgage loans and secured %_%*ﬂiJr_ﬂ =t—RA 5%
BERLEEATEHERESHER

fixed loans which made up to 22% (2014: 31%) of the total loans
receivable as at 31 December 2015. Such collaterals comprise
residential and commercial properties pledged against the
balances. As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of collaterals
for the first mortgage loans which are mainly residential flats

based on its prevailing market prices amounted to approximately

miEEEERBERZ22% (ZF—
e 31%) - 2 EEMREEREK
EHRERNEIEREAYE - N-F
—hEFTZA=+—H BRKBE
FOERR(ZEREEYE) RRT

HK$67.83 million (2014: HK$102.41 million). The fair value of B H AT EX) 467,830,000/
properties collateralised for the second mortgage loans before 7L (ZF— M4 : 102,410,000 7T) ©
discounting credit protections available to the first mortgagees APTBERRE —FRANERR
amounted to approximately HK$254.72 million (2014: HK$286.75 A 55 = RIR I8 B AR ) AR R

million).
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /li\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

N

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The board of directors of the Company
is responsible to ensure the Group to maintain sufficient capital
funding and credit lines to meet liquidity requirements. This is
achieved by projecting cash flows on a regular basis. The accounts
department of the Group monitors and reports the funding needs
to management.

The Group is not exposed to significant liquidity risk since there
is no substantial irrevocable commitment associated with financial

instruments.

The following table summarises the maturity of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2015 based
on contractual undiscounted payments. Except for the interest-
bearing loans, the contractual undiscounted payments of all
financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts as at
the end of the reporting period.

6. &RMEMEEZ

(a)

(b)

EERE(E)

RITRBESERZEERRER
RAZSHFREBBEEETREE
ARBEEFRZIRT -

AEBILTREEMNE SR EE K
EEERBROER -

MENE & B
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AN FEENRR NEEEHE
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EENES URFHEHN DM
BEARGEEEEENRDESS
Z -EERBHESAR - ARFRES
EEARRARBEERFEANER
MENEERENENADESSH
E-BENDEFTHRARESREM
ER-AKENEHHNERESH
ZURAEEBEEER -

AEEYTERCHTARBNERX
AR R AR - I N T R E AR
PELRAR -

TEREWR-_ZE—AF+_A=1+—
A AEEETESHEBELRAOR
WRAZRZVNWHEHBERLEE - B
FATEERIN FESRABNALR
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L |

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. ZRiEIMGEE(Z)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEELEMEE)

On Less than 3 to 12
demand 3 months months

S

®EXR =f@A

At 31 December 2015 R-S-EHE
+=-HA=+-—H
Accruals and other payables B ERREMEN
HIE — 1,319,740 — 72,000 1,391,740
Interest-bearing loans (note) FTEER(M ) 9,553,598 — — — 9,553,598
9,553,598 1,319,740 — 72,000 10,945,338
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—-IF
TZA=+-H
Accruals and other payables [T B AR EMER
FIE — 1,719,250 189,000 — 1,908,250
Finance lease payable EREEHEHRE — 27,500 137,500 68,750 233,750
Interest-bearing loans (note) R ER M) 43,774,376 22,305,576 16,675,958 — 82,755,910
43,774,376 24,052,326 17,002,458 68,750 84,897,910
Note: Included in interest-bearing loans are mortgage loan and corporate M FEERRERTNRBEREE
tax loans from banks totalling HK$9,553,598 as at 31 December ¥BBER R=ZT—RHF+=A
2015 (2014: mortgage loan and term loans from banks totalling =+ —HA# 59,553,598 1t (=
HK$21,891,895). The loan agreements of these loans contain a T—0F  IRITWILIBER LT H
repayment on demand clause giving the banks the unconditional B k48 ££21,891,895/8 TT) o 4 F
right to call in the loans at any time. Therefore, for the purpose EFXNERBERSRERER
of the above maturity profile, such amounts are classified as “on EVIERR - SRITRTRERS AR E kB
demand”. Moo Bt - ¥ EBIEAANE
BB IIMEMNRERER] -
Notwithstanding the above clause of the bank loans, the board BERITERMEA LIER - AR
of directors of the Company is confident that the banks will not RIERERR/RRTTEART
demand full repayment of the mortgage loan within 12 months CSERBHEEZLBER M
and they consider that the mortgage loan will be repaid in 1 AR R B K 1 P L H R RN
accordance with its respective repayment schedules as set out in RER - ZFEHEZ2ERER
the loan agreement. The evaluation was made after considering RBEMROBBRR  BRBE
the financial position of the Group at the end of the reporting FEFERNEE  CEERES
period; the values of the collaterals securing the mortgage loan; DA R 7R &= B A7 15 4R B (B 38 B
the lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made BETE - REBEANKNR  A5EAE
all previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with E-S-EFE5HDHARAE
the contractual terms, repayments of the mortgage loan are to be BIRE -

made by the Group on an accelerating basis until the contractual
maturities in 2027.

70  Annual Report 2015



6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(0

Liquidity risk (continued)
Note: (continued)

The remaining balance of HK$21,882,481 that is classified as “on
demand” represents overdrafts facilities obtained from banks as at
31 December 2014, which are repayable on demand. No overdraft
facilities were utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2015.

The board of directors of the Company has closely monitored the
rate of utilisation of these overdrafts facilities throughout the year
and make sure all relevant interests were duly paid.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
or the interest income of a portfolio will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s major interest-bearing assets
at the end of the reporting period are bank deposits and interest-
bearing loans receivable and payable. Interests on bank deposits
are principally based on deposits rates offered by banks in Hong
Kong. Interest-bearing loans receivable are charged at fixed or
floating rates. Interest-bearing loans payable comprise loans from
independent lenders which are charged at fixed rates, and loans
from a bank which are charged at floating rates.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure by matching the
interest rate profile of its assets and liabilities. The board of
directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring the policy is
appropriate and sufficient to monitor the interest rate exposure
of the Group, by regularly monitoring the benchmark interest
rates of products offered against prevailing market conditions.
Substantially most of the Group’s loans receivable carried fixed
interest rates. The Group prices these loans receivable strategically
to reflect market fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest
rate spread.

In consideration of historical fluctuation in interest rates in recent
years, the Group expects a similar level of change within the next
twelve months. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant arising from the Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group’s bank
deposits and loans receivable and payable at floating interest
rates.

6.

&R EREERE

(b)

(9]

nBESERE)
MR ()

#5 #821,882,4818 7T * BRI EK
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AEMEZRE -
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MERFANEREX  BRFAAE
HEMECEZ RSN -

il 2= 3l B

FMEERERIANEENRE
HENFBIRAKET SN XEH
KB ER - RIREHRR  RNEE
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ERNBFBRITEANTFRNE - &
WEt B EFIZEE ST BH KR -
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—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. SRiEMEHE(Z

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (0 ME=REEE)

Change in Effect on profit Effect on

basis points after tax equity
HERBERET
EHBE IHE HEZHRE

31 December 2015 —E—-AF
+=-A=+-—H
Bank deposits WITTFER +/-50 +/-141,669 +/-141,669
Interest-bearing loans receivable FEWETEE K +/-50 +/-183,253 +/-183,253
Interest-bearing loans payable EREEER +/-50 -/+38,303 -/+38,303
31 December 2014 —E-NF
+-A=+—~8
Bank deposits RITFER +/-50 +/-35,673 +/-35,673
Interest-bearing loans receivable FEWETEE X +/-50 +/-219,879 +/-219,879
Interest-bearing loans payable EREHEER +/-50 —/+182,758 —/+182,758
(d) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December d MR=FT-AF+=-HA=+-—8BZ2
2015 SMTIAES
2014
—E-mEF
HK$
7T
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables (including cash and BERRERREBER
cash equivalents) ERBEEEEY) 407,084,571 344,617,680
Financial liabilities: SRBRK:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHKAGTEZ
cRAE 10,945,338 84,106,125
(e) Fair values @) AFHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial ARBEHAREHBMRRRFNE
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial MAEASHBEOEREERAS
position approximate their respective fair values. BEAFEMRE -
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

:Z/rb\ /EI\ Eﬁ ﬁ% $& 2% M—JL Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access

at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December
2015 and 2014

The fair value measurements of the Group’s investment properties are

recurring and are determined using level 2 inputs.

Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2015 and 2014

The valuation technique and key inputs used in the level 2 fair value
measurements of the investment properties are set out in note 18 to
the financial statements.

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation techniques
used.

ATHEME

AFEARTHLRENGBABRTH
PP 5% 55 HH 05 0 E A M 8 O L R
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#Y 3 2 [ 32 RO R B AR
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HHHLTHUER ZAS R 2 EAE
B o
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+T—HATFERBEROEE
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all of the Group’s revenue
has been generated from the provision and arrangement of credit
facilities in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from
loans offered to the Group’s customers. Information reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are
integrated and no discrete financial information is available. Accordingly,
no segment analysis or information about the Group’s products and
services is presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no revenue from a
single external customer was amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ) 3% B 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

E—ERERERERAR

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. Ui+ HbUg A\ U&=

The Group's revenue, other income and gains recognised during the

FAXRKBEEERNKRE  EhBRARK

year are as follows: w=EINMAT
2014
—ET—mE
HK$
7T
Revenue: W 5
Interest income on loans BA B A 63,264,700 53,347,194
Other income: N
Other fee income H {th & AU A 364,151 222,127
Bank interest income |ATHAE WA 312 124
Gross rental income el AEzE 1,526,777 1,269,564
1,891,240 1,491,815
Gains: &%
Fair value gains on investment properties REWMERTFEWS 3,000,000 5,000,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BEN & E
W 2 248,284 —
3,248,284 5,000,000
Other income and gains H b U A R U 2 5,139,524 6,491,815
Total revenue, other income and gains g ~ HaA R 8
¥ 68,404,224 59,839,009
T -HEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

S

AT (continued 4)

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. M ER
2014
—T-mE
HK$
7T
Finance lease charges MEHSEER 22,985 15,000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (note) WITERRBEIZAE

(Bt &%) 1,463,830 1,260,623

Interest on other borrowings wholly repayable ARAFABKENHD
within five years HiEERNE 2,046,911 2,494,500
3,533,726 3,770,123

Note: The Group’s loans, which were borrowed from the banks as at 31 MieE: mNEMERGABRE - BEX  BHTE

December 2015, were classified in the consolidated statement of financial
position as current liabilities, as the respective loan agreements contain
a clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the loans
at any time. This is irrespective of whether a default event has occurred
and notwithstanding any other terms and maturities stated in the loan

agreements.

Based on the maturity terms of the loans borrowed from banks as at
year end date, the amounts of interest expense on these loans not wholly
repayable within five years totalled HK$402,132 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$740,839).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F—EHEREBEBRAA
,Z'/J—ﬂ\ /E|\ /\7T %7% $& 2% Bﬁ Ef (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

1.

The Group’s profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

B i By iz F

AEERBEAEFENGGEA)TFE

following: 8 :
2014
T —F
HK$
7T
Auditor's remuneration % BRD B 650,000 620,000
Depreciation e 667,596 1,439,547
Amortisation of leasehold land under finance BMEROTEHE L EEE
leases 64,899 70,421
Legal and professional fees EREREEEA 2,302,922 1,243,249
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE Y% « B E K& & &
U 7 (248,284) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R B AR RS (286,818) —
Fair value gains on investment properties REWMERT AR (3,000,000) (5,000,000)
Direct operating expenses of investment properties E4AMHEW AR EYE
that generate rental income CLHEEEERY 220,943 189,822
Minimum lease rental payments in respect of land AR IK &L & 47+ &
and buildings under an operating lease BFINNREHES 1,216,075 1,235,275
Net charge/(recovery) for impairment allowance for i U & X i (& B 5~
loans receivable (@) 3% 78 8,231,523 (378,408)
T -RFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. REBAX
2014
—T-mE
HK$
&L
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BRI — BANEH
Provision for the year FRNEE 4,811,689 3,660,871
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(GBERE)
BHETR (54,366) 10,406
4,757,323 3,671,277
Deferred tax (note 25) i 3T B 38 (B 7£25) (131,111) 430,622
4,626,212 4,101,899
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2014 HE-ZT-—AFT-_A=+—HLEFE &
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 BREHERBEGEAERTEF - £16.5%
December 2015. (ZZ— 4 1 16.5%) BBt R 4B H B8 -
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product Frig Bl X BBk B A s FI SR LABR B R 55
of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as BME2BEHEMT :
follows:
2014
—T—F
HK$
7 TT
Profit before tax % 75 A1 A 29,498,918 29,099,577
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% ZE A E16.5%TER
IR 4,867,321 4,801,430
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEARMBWANT B L E (497,284) (872,360)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible Ao MBRAINHEETE 310,193 94,706
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised 7K ¥ 72 & B 2= 58 0 B 7%
©a 348 67,717
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(BBEEE)
BETRE (54,366) 10,406
Income tax expense Fr 15 %1 5 2 4,626,212 4,101,899
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 7% R 2= Mt 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - —hAF+-A=1+—HILFE

—

LOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. EEEMHEAX

Employee benefits expense (excluding directors’ REBARA(TEREE

emoluments): EME) :

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e EANERM 8,859,965 9,269,269

Pension scheme contributions RIREFH IR 539,585 562,090

9,399,550 9,831,359

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included FRN - FAEEREGEaFREESENS(Z
four (2014: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the T-NFNR)ES HMEREEUH
analysis presented in note 14(a) to the consolidated financial statements. MEMFVV@QITHRY - T —H(=ZF
The emolument of the remaining one (2014: one) individual is set out —MNE:—R)EEZMEFREHINAT
below:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe RUHREWREA 420,000 396,700
Performance related bonus KA 61,000 35,100
Pension scheme contributions BRIKEET B K 42,000 39,670
523,000 471,470

The emolument fell within the following band: MeNETHGEEMNALDT:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1

Fic
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE—T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE
™%

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEFRAE

(a) Directors’ emoluments () EENS
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BREEHE-_T—AFT-A=1+—
December 2015 is set out below: HIEFEOMeHEIMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HREAALTUEESH (FRAFATSIHAMBLAT)ARARBEASIBENMNE
Allowance Performance Pension

and benefits related scheme Share-based

Salaries in kind bonuses contribution payments
BHR REEM BALHE YL 0]
& BEWEHN T4 #R ERHEXR

Executive directors: BITEE:
sin Kwok Lam RE M — 2,860,000 — — 357,500 — 3,217,500
Tsang Yan Kwong gt — 975,000 — 37,500 121,875 — 1,134,375
Leung Wai Hung R — 585,000 — 22,500 58,500 - 666,000
Ho Siu Man %8 — 520,000 — 20,000 52,000 — 592,000
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Chan Lai Yee RER 90,833 — — — — — 90,833

Independent non-executive  BIFHTES:

directors:
Lee Kin Fai FRiE 90,833 — — — — - 90,833
Tai Man Hin, Tony HCH (M ata)
(Note a) 90,833 — — — — — 90,833
Yu Wan Hei REE 90,833 — — — — — 90,833
Total for 2015 —E-REHE 363,332 4,940,000 — 80,000 589,875 — 5,973,207
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F-—FEREREBRARAF

es to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & B4 5 3} 3% MY 3T (continued )
- - For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z - —hAF+-A=1+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEARFIE(E
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @) EFEM& &)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 EEFHE_T—NF+-A=1+—
December 2014 is set out below: REFENMeEHI 0T :

Executive directors: HITES:
Sin Kwok Lam i B AR — 2,860,000 — — 357,500 — 3,217,500
Tsang Yan Kwong o — 975,000 — — 121,875 — 1,096,875
Leung Wai Hung RiEE — 585,000 — — 58,500 — 643,500
Ho Siu Man Al 7% B — 520,000 — — 52,000 - 572,000
Non-executive director: FHMITEE:
Chan Lai Yee fRRE 5 50,000 — — — — — 50,000
Independent non-executive BUFRTES:
directors:
Lee Kin Fai TR 50,000 — — — — — 50,000
Tai Man Hin, Tony L CH (Fff )
(Note a) 40,137 — — — — — 40,137
Yu Wan Hei RIEE 50,000 — — — — — 50,000
Li Kit Chee (Note b) Z 2 (M ) 25,000 — — — — — 25,000
Total for 2014 - WEHE 215,137 4,940,000 — — 589,875 — 5,745,012
Note: (a) Appointed on 14 March 2014 st (@) RZZT—F=A+MHAE
Z 1t
(b) Resigned on 28 May 2014 (b) R-E—NERA=-+/N\H
BT
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRAYEESHEXRERETEM
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil). MeEmEZEE(ZE—mE: &)

—E-RFFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEBIIRFE(E)

(continued)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) BRALEE -  TEEHEAEER
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies G EEAETHANER E
corporate and connected entities ERREMZSHEH
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings BRARRAR) AR R B AR AL
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of the MEE—FBZEHEAEBAZT &
Company in favour of a controlled body corporate of Mr. Sin AFTUMEBER EERKEMZS
Kwok Lam is as follows: ZEBEMT

Outstanding Maximum
amount Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount at amount
Name of the amount  beginning the end of during the Interest
controlled body corporate payable of the year the year year rate  Security
X)) X FARS
ZERHEABBER FEffdE REESE REELE AHEELE HE #HE&
As at 31 December 2015 R-F-E&+=A
=+-8
National Arts Entertainment EZREEFRAF
Limited
Loan A Matured on
6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 8 April 2016 11%  Nil
BRA RZF-RE
mANBEH# &
Loan B Matured on
6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 8 April 2016 11%  Nil
BB RZB-7&
mANBEH &
As at 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+=A
=t-8
National Arts Entertainment HEREFRAA
Limited
Loan A Matured on
6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 8 April 2016 1% Nil
EHA RZB—REF
ANBE =
Loan B Matured on
6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 8 April 2016 11%  Nil
BB RZZE-RE
mANBE =
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15.

16.

EF—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ) 3% B 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEMENE(E)

(continued)
(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EEFENRXS -  RHFEHHWEKX
arrangements or contracts Fl &=
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in ARBEERESNHEETRER
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a FRAFNEAFEBNATFENALR
party and in which a director of the Company and the director’s NAMERFIN FEEANEEXEEH
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or NEARG  BRHERGHFHEER
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during B HEENE X -
the year.
DIVIDENDS 15. &2
2014
—E—mEF
HK$
7T
2013 Final of HK0.2 cents per ordinary share paid KN —ZT—=F RKHK L
A% @ AR0.278 L — 2,880,000
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for ERNWITERRBEE_T—HAFR_F—
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. WE+—A=+—H ﬁi&ﬂﬁ I ] R ER
B o
EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BixEF
Basic earnings per share BREXEF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit ERERNBMNDHIERARAEEGAEN
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$24,872,706 AN A)VF N 5 24,872,706 T (ZF — Y
(2014: HK$24,997,678) of the Company, and the weighted average 124,997,678 L) R F AN B EFHITEBIR
number of ordinary shares of 278,880,338 (2014: 72,457,008 (restated)) DNHE G % $0278,880,338% (—ZF — M £ :
in issue during the year. 72,457,008 (& E51)) 5t & -
Diluted earnings per share BREFRT
No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not HRARRREZE-Z—RAFR=-_T—NF
have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years ended T A=+ —HIEMEAFELEEMEL
31 December 2015 and 2014. BELRKR WUEZISREERF -

T-hEFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE—T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

™%
B
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% -BERRE
Leasehold  Furniture Office Motor
Buildings improvements and fixture equipment Computer vehicle
HEYE HER
kit HBEERE BHAES B RE
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE-—ImF
—A—H 2,348,667 2,024,372 631,476 1,028,939 956,270 638,000 2,500,000 10,127,724
Additions wNE o = 11,380 20,978 151,850 — — 184,208
Disposals HE — — (6,764) (12,427) (82,116) — —  (101,307)

At 31 December 2014 and i utgiS

1 January 2015 +=A=+-H
k=F—%1F
—H—8 2,348,667 2,024,372 636,092 1,037,490 1,026,004 638,000 2,500,000 10,210,625
Additions HNE — - 5,830 30,303 54,663 — — 90,796
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (716,331) — — — — — — (716,331)
Disposals e — — (193,258) (205,371) (124,314) (638,000) (2,500,000) (3,660,943)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF
+-A=t—H 1,632,336 2,024,372 448,664 862,422 956,353 — — 5,924,147

Accumulated depreciation B3t E

At 1 January 2014 RZE—MF

-A—A 831,801 1,668,276 542,078 840,701 890,496 265,833 468,750 5,507,935
Charge for the year FRI 234,866 356,096 89,296 177,530 109,759 159,500 312,500 1,439,547
Disposals HE — - (6,764) (12,427) (82,116) — — (101,307)

At 31 December 2014 and i itgis

1 January 2015 +=A=+-H
k=F—%1F
—H—8 1,066,667 2,024,372 624,610 1,005,804 918,139 425,333 781,250 6,846,175
Charge for the year ERFH 199,051 - 8,230 38,330 93,484 146,209 182,292 667,596
Transfer to investment BRZERENE
properties (226,447) — — — — — — (226,447)
Disposals HE — — (193,258) (205,371) (124,314) (571,542) (963,542)  (2,058,027)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—-RF
+-A=t—H 1,039,271 2,024,372 439,582 838,763 887,309 — — 5,229,297
Carrying amount MREE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+-A=1+—H 593,065 - 9,082 23,659 69,044 — — 694,850
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-mE
+-A=1t—H 1,282,000 — 11,482 31,686 107,865 212,667 1,718,750 3,364,450
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

,Z/r\ﬂ\ a E7j %k #& 2% Bﬁ u\f (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

During the year, one of the owner-occupied buildings became an
investment property because its use had changed. The difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the building at
the date of transfer amounted to HK$5,203,775 was recognised as a
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s buildings
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to
HK$1,282,000.

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by
the Group under finance leases amounted to HK$212,667.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. M% - - BERBREE)

FR-Eh-EEERTERERSRE XM
RREEDE ZEBEFRERAHNER
B8N T {E M Z%5,203,7758 T E R 4
ME - BERKEER -

RZZE-—ME+-A=+—0 KxEEE
REEERTEFERANBTOREER
1,282,000/ 7T °

R-T—NE+-_A=+—0 XELEHEFE
MO Tz A ERREEA212,6678 T ©

18. HREYE

2014

—T—E

HK$

b

At 1 January Hn—A—H 45,400,000 40,400,000
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEEME  BEREE 15,500,000 —
Fair value gains NP ERE 3,000,000 5,000,000
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 63,900,000 45,400,000

The Group's investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are all
held under long term leases. The investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively by RHL Appraisal Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuer, on direct comparison
of price properties of similar size, character and location (level 2
measurement). The key input used in the valuation is the price per square
feet. The investment properties are leased to independent third parties

under operating leases.

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of investment properties
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to
HK$35,900,000 (2014: HK$45,400,000).

REENKREMELRET S  ARBERY
HAORE R AFR-ZT—NE+=
HE+—H'%%&§%¥“%ﬁﬁj§
FEERMEMKNITHERBARR

E%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ~&§&m&%%2%
REMHHEEGER-E) HEEBZE
EMABEBERBYIRER ZFREY
ERBEREENVEETFTBILE=T] -

MW_Z—AF+-_A=+—8 EAAXE
EHRTEFRERNREVENEREA
35,900,000/ 7t (== — Y 4 : 45,400,000
EIL) °

—HFFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to f'he Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 78 38 25 B 5 (continued #)
RE-T-RE+=A=t-ALEE

For the year

_ e FI?:
ANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BILEE

Motor vehicle
registration mark

AEBHME

Cost B &
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZE—WOFE—HA—1 -
1 January 2015 —E-mME+-_A=+—8K
—ZE-h¥—HA—H 792,448
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HKBAR (792,448)
At 31 December 2015 R-_F-—h&E+_A=1+—H —
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s motor vehicle registration mark was R-E—mNE+-_A=+—10  XxE£EEMA
assessed as having indefinite useful life because there was no time limit EERRNEEENG A ASEREHEH -
that the Group can enjoy the registration provided by that relevant FRAANEB N EE H AR B (F B8
authority prior to its disposal. REEPP RS My & A o

20. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER FINANCE LEASES 20. &Y THS T 1

At 1 January m—A—H 25,296,408 25,366,829

Transfer to investment properties EREERAYE (9,806,341) —

Amortisation during the year ERAE: & (64,899) (70,421)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 15,425,168 25,296,408
The Group's leasehold land is analysed as follows: AEENHE L HAWNOT

In Hong Kong REE
Long leases RHMELD 14,052,940 23,880,646
Medium-term leases FRHERFE 49 1,372,228 1,415,762

15,425,168 25,296,408
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

:Z/rb\ /ﬁ\ Eﬁ ﬁ% i& 2% M—JL Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

20. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER FINANCE LEASES

21.

(continued)

At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of Group’s leasehold land

under finance leases pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans

amounted to HK$25,296,408.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered share

20 MEROTHELH(Z

RZT—mF+—A=+—8" kALK %
ERITEFNBEFROREEHOTAEEE
B L RE(E 425,296,408 7T

21.

RHBASMIRE

RZE-—RAF+ZA=+—B WEBRAFN

3N

Percentage of ownership

Name operation capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
= AR 3L 5E i R EETEE AATRE
E=g EEME R g S BAEESL TEEB
Direct Indirect
=k o =
First Holdings Consortium Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$150,000,000 100 — Investment holding
First Holdings Consortium Limited HBREXZHS 150,000,0003% 7T 100 — FBEER
First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Dormant
E—ERRB(hE)BERAR S 18T 100 — B
First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 — 100  Provision and
arrangement of
credit facilities
FE-ERUBERRAR S 153,550,0005% 7T — 100 RERZHEE
[
Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$1 — 100  Investment holding
Honour Event Limited EEEAHS 17T — 100 #HEER
Techlink Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100  Investment holding
HIBREERAF i 178 7T — 100 ®EZEK
First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 —_ 100  Dormant
E—ERERBERAR R 178 7T — 100 {F3
—z—nss® 87
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE 22. BERER

2014

—T-mE

HK$

7T

Loans to customers BEFEX 378,923,601 336,862,414
Accrued interest receivables FE U FEETFI B 5,883,198 4,060,434
384,806,799 340,922,848
Impairment allowance on individual assessment BT AR ERE (4,036,982) (2,128,950)
Impairment allowance on collective assessment SRTMAIRERE (2,525,063) (1,925,063)
378,244,754 336,868,835

Analysed as: 55

Non-current assets FRBEE 224,107,674 223,903,767
Current assets MBNEE 154,137,080 112,965,068
378,244,754 336,868,835

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans

receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed

regularly by management.

The loans receivable above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

,Z/r\ﬂ\ a E7f %k #& 2% M—JL uf (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as follows:

FEWER(E)

BRERNEELENTNOT :

2014
—mF
HK$
7T

Neither past due nor impaired A8 H SR E
— Unsecured — A 290,016,752 220,720,795
— Secured — FER 62,071,009 64,846,116
Less than 1 month past due BmETE—@ A 8,624,643 9,328,135
1 to 3 months past due BmE—Z2=1EA 236,545 36,675,493
Over 3 months past due mEREEE =1 A 19,817,179 7,076,188
380,766,128 338,646,727
Impaired (note) B (P 5E) 4,040,671 2,276,121
384,806,799 340,922,848

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivable for
which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at year end
date.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of individual customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the Directors are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment on these individual loans is necessary as
these loans receivable were substantially/fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period or there has not been a significant change in credit
quality that these balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Amongst all past due but not impaired loans, the first mortgage loan
of HK$19,989,530 (2014: HK$30,429,790) and second mortgage loan
of HK$300,000 (2014: HK$10,396,761) were secured by the collaterals
with fair value (based on its prevailing market price) which amounted
to HK$23,750,000 (2014: HK$40,570,000) and HK$3,500,000 (2014:
HK$37,370,000) respectively as at 31 December 2015.

M ERFEARERREERELS 2
HEHOERRERE EREE -

I 48 780 R 7 SRR (B ) R SRR R 20 AR
TEEREHENTRBEEFPARH

£ 780 HA B 3 08 B 1Y FE WA B 2 2 R AR
SEHERHERACENBEAAZTFPER - R
BRALR ARZERBERCDRRE
B Ay, FHEAOX EEEEBIES
R% - BREHE# DR AT 2EMWE
HEERRBARUIEERNEREHRE
Bim -

ERBECAHETERENERY &
W% 18 B 3019,989,5308 T(Z & — M
F:30,4297908 L) R E - RIZBE R
300,000/ 7T (ZZF— M4 : 10,396,761 L)
DBURZE—RAF+_A=+—HBAFEZ
,\Eﬁ%ﬁﬂ“;ﬁr@ 5 Bl £23,750,000% 70 (=

/Y 4F : 40,570,000/ 7T.) % 3,500,000
JC(ZZ—PO4 : 37,370,000 JT) &9 K 3
ERIEA -

—HFFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

22. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22. BIMER(E)
The individually impaired loans receivable relate to clients that were in ERREEKRERERAMBEEN R
financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivable is expected 6 EHEE-—MBHEYREATYE -
to be recovered. As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group did RZTE—RAFR=ZFT—NE+A=+—
not hold any collateral in respect of the individually impaired loans A AEBYERFEEMEBERRER
receivable. KWEFHERD -
23. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 23. GFIRE®X
2014
—mF
HK$
7T
Bank loans RITER 9,553,598 21,891,895
Bank overdrafts RITBEX — 21,882,481
Loans from independent third parties BYE=ZHER — 38,500,000
9,553,598 82,274,376
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EENREESRNT
2014
= — O £
HK$
7T
On demand or within one year BRERS—FN 1,016,542 61,792,557
In the second year E_F 665,908 1,454,906
In the third to fifth year FZFEFERF 2,175,174 4,667,237
After five years FF & 5,695,974 14,359,676
9,553,598 82,274,376
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment —FREF|EEEERSK
after one year but contain a repayment on EREBBERGIAR
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) AR WRITERDS
b (8,537,056) (20,481,819)
Amount due for settlement within 12 months A AR E 2 5B
(shown under current liabilities) (FIA R B B &) 1,016,542 61,792,557
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EF—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ) 3% B 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

23. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (continued) 23. GHRER(E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in REBEBENREMBNLBITEE -

Hong Kong dollars.

At 31 December 2015, the bank loans are secured by charge over the R-TE—RF+_A=+—8 " RITEZRMN
Group's investment properties (note 18). AEBEIREYE (M F18) ERIEI -

At 31 December 2014, the bank loans and overdrafts are secured by RZZE—WMF+_A=+—H RITER
charge over the Group’s buildings classified as property, plant and RBEIURNEBSERME  BEREE
equipment (note 17), leasehold land under finance leases (note 20) and WEEF (M E17) RERATHSE -1 (K
investment properties (note 18). H200 AR EMEM T8 ERER -
At 31 December 2015, the Group had no available undrawn borrowing R-ZE—AF+-_A=+—0 £A&£ET
facilities (2014: HK$117,519). BEUHPHAREREERE (T —0F:

117,519 7T) °

The average interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as RIBERARNFHFMEQDT
follows:
2015 2014
—“F—AF —ZTmE
Bank loans RITER 2.75%-4.25% 2.5%-4.25%
Bank overdrafts RITE X N/AFi#E A 5.25%-5.75%
Loans from independent third parties BALE=FEMR N/AF i A 8%-8.5%

—z-agsx 9]
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE

Minimum lease payments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

4. EtREHAENRIE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

REES£ REEE£HE
2014 2014
—T—-F —ZE-F
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Within one year —F R 165,000 — 150,000
In the second to fifth year, F_EERF
inclusive (BEEEMSF) 68,750 — 62,500
233,750 — 212,500
Less: Future finance charges B RREE B (21,250) — N/AZ 3 FA
Present value of lease HERERE
obligations 212,500 — 212,500
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : B+ =& AR F|
within 12 months 2 5k E (5
(shown under current AmE &
liabilities) &) — (150,000)
Amount due for settlement +ZEABEEZ
after 12 months KIE — 62,500

It is the Group's policy to lease its motor vehicle under finance leases.

The lease term is 4 years.

At 31 December 2014, the effective borrowing rate was 4.75%. Interest

rates are fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a fixed repayment

basis and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental

payments. All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong

dollars. The finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s title to

the leased assets.

The leased assets were disposed and the corresponding finance lease

was fully settled during current year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & Bt 78 3} 2% i 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

Ll |
25. DEFERRED TAX 25. IBEHIE
The following are deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the LTAREERAZEEHBEAGREE
Group:
Tax losses Depreciation Provision for
Accelerated available to allowance in impairment
tax offset against excess of related on loans and
depreciation future profits depreciation receivables
RGN BABMNEN ERRERRE
ER AR & ZHIEESE HERE WERE
At 1 January 2014 R-E—mE—-fF—H 192,364 (168,824) - (704,365) (680,825)
Charged/(credited) to profit or FREBZEXT
loss for the year (note 12) me/ (GtA)
(Fff 5£12) (64,560) 142,796 (34,343) 386,729 430,622
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ—REF
1 January 2015 +=ZA=+—"H
;kZZ—0%
—R—H 127,804 (26,028) (34,343) (317,636) (250,203)
Charged/(credited) to profit or ~ # RAEBR KT
loss for the year (note 12) ne/GtA)
(K 5E12) 26,352 26,028 (84,492) (98,999) (131,111)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—1%F
+-A=+—H 154,156 — (118,835) (416,635) (381,314)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) TH AERMBEMK R KNS AE TR B &%
for statement of financial position purposes: (&) DA -
2014
—ET—ME
HK$
& T
Deferred tax liabilities REREAR 154,156 127,804
Deferred tax assets IR AE T 18 & B (535,470) (378,007)
(381,314) (250,203)
As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of RZT—WFE+=A=+—08  ~AE@EJH
HK$157,747 available for offset against future profits. 85 AR 2% F #9 oR ) A A I8 5 18 157,747
BT ©
The tax losses have been fully utilised during the year to offset against HEBEERFARHAREKHEAEEE
the assessable profits of the Group. There is no tax loss carried forward REEF  cRELEBTEFEEEBLES -

as at year end date.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. lR&F
Authorised Issued and fully paid
EE ERTREZBMAR

Number of

shares

Rkt 8B

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at RZE-ME—-A—H

1 January 2014 BREBCOBTZ
TER 500,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 1,200,000,000 12,000,000
Issue of shares on placement (Note (a) B &BFE TR 7
(P &£ (@) - — 240,000,000 2,400,000
Share consolidation (Note (b)) & 13 & o (3 5 (b) (450,000,000,000) —  (1,296,000,000) —
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each at R-ZE—NF
31 December 2014 and +TZA=+—-HkK
1 January 2015 —Z-h¥-A—-H
SHREEIETLL
TmR 50,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 144,000,000 14,400,000
Issue of shares under rights issue BREERETRN
(Note () (M=) - — 432,000,000 43,200,000
Capital reorganisation (Note (d)) R R & 48 (P 55 (d)) 450,000,000,000 — — (51,840,000
Issue of shares on placement (Note (e) B &8 E TR
(P &£ (e)) - — 28,800,000 288,000
Share consolidation (Note (f)) & 13 & o (H = () (250,000,000,000) — (302,400,000) —
Ordinary share of HK$0.02 each at R-ZE—1%F
31 December 2015 +ZA=+—H
FHRmEE2ETL
L&k 250,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 302,400,000 6,048,000

Note: B 5%

(a) On 25 April 2014, the Company and Trinity Finance Investment Limited (a) RZE—WNFMA=-+HB AAFH
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of MEeMBEBRARTL—HEESH
240,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent investors N ABRIZEK0.09BTHERRM
at a price of HK$0.09 per share. The placement was completed on 7 3% & 3 B 240,000,000 & B B
May 2014 and the premium on the placing of shares amounting to COBTTMERR BEEFER_-_T—
HK$18,436,548 (net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$763,452) WERALBTER  MESKMOEE
was credited to the Company’s share premium account. #318,436,5487% 7L (TEHMBR AR 5 1T X

763,452/ 712 ) B St AR R BB A1) 5 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

4r /li\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

N

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE-T—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 24 December 2014, every ten shares of the Company’s issued
and unissued shares with par value of HK$0.01 per share have been
consolidated into one share with par value of HK$0.1 with effect from 29
December 2014. The consolidated shares rank pari passu in all respects
with each other. The implementation did not alter the underlying assets,
business operations, management or financial position of the Company
or the interests or rights of the shareholders, save for any fractional
consolidated shares (i.e. less than one consolidated share) to which
shareholders may be entitled.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 24 December 2014, the Company proposed rights issue on the basis
of three rights shares of HK$0.1 each for every share in issue and held on
the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.238 per Rights Share.

On 2 February 2015, the rights issue was completed and 432,000,000
rights shares were issued and allotted as a result of the rights issue. On
the same day, the premium on the issue of rights shares amounted to
HK$56,012,433 (net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$3,603,567)
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting held
on 24 December 2014, the Company underwent a capital reorganisation
(i) to reduce the par value of each issued share of the Company from
HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the capital paid-up thereon to the
extent of HK$0.09 on each of its issued shares and (i) to sub-divide the
authorised but unissued shares of HK$0.1 each into ten new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

On 2 March 2015, all the conditions precedent of the implementation of
the capital reorganisation had been fulfilled and the capital reorganisation
had become effective on 2 March 2015.

On 24 April 2015, the Company and Jun Yang Securities Company
Limited entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
28,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent investors
at a price of HK$0.288 per share. The placement was completed on
8 May 2015 and the premium on the placing of shares amounting to
HK$7,590,768 (net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$415,632)
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

26. R&E (&

M EE ()

(b)

BERZE—NF+-A=-+MNBRTH
BREFHNAELBBEHN HRER &
TREREENBTHARTBEITR
RETROEEHA—REIREEE
TG BT —NOF+=-A=+ANB
BER - AHROEEZHAESTEY
ZERFHMML - ERRBRNEHBTFH
BARARIMMEREE  EXBKLE §E8
BN SKIRERERIET - R
FAIZENEMTHEAHRD (DR K
A PERR ) Br oh

BERZE-—HF+_A=-+MNBEETH
BRERFANAEG EBBH—HRER  AQ
FIRZEBRREEAEERE—RE
BORMERZ=ZRSREECIEITH
AR IR B 2 R ERERARH0.238
BTHRBEETHR -

R-ZEZ—RAE-_A-HA #HRBREZK M
432,000,0008% £ % A% 15 B A 4 5% i &
BIIREE -RAB - #HERKROBEITEHE
#356,012,433 T (FEM BRI H B 1TH X
3,603,567 18 ) B Et AR R AW IR 5 5
B -

BRER-Z-—NF+-A=-+MHBRTH
BREFH ARG BB —FREER AR
RIEETRAEZEE  UWHOARREKRE
BEITRMOEOEEBONETTHIRE0.01E
T AR IEEBREETRMO OB R K
AK0.0978 7T ¢ (i) B A EEO.1VETTHVAE
ERBFEITROFARTREREE.ONE
TCRIET R AR e

RIZB-—RAE=ZA-B  ETRAZTAEN
FRA SRR BIER  MIRAEAE
RZE—RAF=ZAZRAEW -

R-ZZE—AFWA-+WMA  ARQAHEE
5B HFBRARTI—HESHE A
HARER0.288B T ER A LI E
% Bt %28,800,000 % F AR EE0.0178 7T HY
ETEB - BEFERN-_T-—RERANA
SR - BE & BR 19 0% (B /7,590,768 T (TE
MR D B 475 2415,6328 L8 B 5 A
RARE R EER -

ol

T-hEFEFR
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(f) Pursuant to a resolution passed in the special general meeting held on 10
December 2015, every two shares of the Company’s issued and unissued
shares with par value of HK$0.01 per share have been consolidated into
one share with par value of HK$0.02 with effect from 11 December 2015.
The consolidated shares rank pari passu in all respects with each other. The
implementation did not alter the underlying assets, business operations,
management or financial position of the Company or the interests or rights
of the shareholders, save for any fractional consolidated shares (i.e. less
than one consolidated share) to which shareholders may be entitled.

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it,
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
comprises borrowings and obligations under finance lease less bank and
cash balance. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e.
Share capital, retained profits and other reserves). As at 31 December
2015, the Group did not have net debt as cash and cash equivalents
were greater than total borrowings (2014 gearing ratio: 18.58%).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the
year. As at 31 December 2015, 84.73% (2014: 70.08%) of the shares
were in public hands.

Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

26. R&X (&

MeE ()

(f) BRER-_ZE-—AF+-A+HBTHRR
FRAG BB —RRER  SWRE
BREE0.OIE T ARR EHIT R ARELT
e A f R —IREBAREE0.028 7T M X
- B-F-—RAF+-_A+—BER-
EHBRMEELHER T EHZAERSE
Wi - BRBENERTERERRA
MMEBEE XBEE EERIUBM
Mo KRR ERRER  ERRATF
BOEFAZTEA RN (DR —REHR
) BR SN o

AEEEAEENIZABRRRELAEE
BEERBEENRINERRIFNERE
BHE UXHEEBRBNRABRRE
-

AEFRERBEREBARBREERRTZ
HEREREEZRBREEMELRE -
AEBEAABBRKREEERNLEITH
BARFE R EEARGERE -

AEBERBEEABLERERER - b1t
ENREBFEBR NG AEEANEE BT
BOBNAERS BEHFERLEEER
MEMEEARBITIRBESEH - LA
BABEMBEZID (BRA - (REHEF
REMEES) R-T—AF+=-_A=+—
A BaRRehESSEDNETRAEER
MASETEESFR(CE—NFEER
B & 18.58%) °

RBE-_FT-—AF+-A=+—HAR=-Z—
ME+=A=Z+—ALFE AEBAERE
AMEE BEXEFLEED -

AEBEZBRIATIHIRERRTE VBT #
RN B PT ey s - = D25%H) i
MERAREE  RNVEBAEEERED
MIEREE -

AEBBAREROMBPETLEZELIR
HANBFRENERAROERORE - Z
BEBTAEEARBEFEN—BEFE25%
HREE - RZTE—HF+-_A=+—RH ' 2
BHBEEABRDNSLT3% (ZT—NF:
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27.

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

,Z'/J—ﬂ\ /E|\ /\7T %7% $& 2% Bﬁ Ef (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26. B&E (=&
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the banks —BERMEEE - RITAUAMFKEES -
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the HE-T-—AFE-_FT—NF+_A=1+—
financial covenants of any interest-bearing borrowings for the years AEFE BMERREWNTEBENNK
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. E2=
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  27. AASHERRA REEERH
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY b
Statement of financial position of the Company (@ F2AFUBRAR
2014
—ZT—UFE
Note HK$
B = BT
Non-current asset ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries NG S 150,000,001 150,000,001
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BRHE- Rk
receivables H fth B U 5K 8 403,102 1,461,355
Due from subsidiaries JiE U BT /BB & /) 308 179,459,261 72,199,534
Bank and cash balances WITRB 2 EH 37,864 17,766
Total current assets mENE E AR 179,900,227 73,678,655
Current liabilities mEBaE
Accruals and other payables EErERAREMmE
IR 116,532 36,532
Due to a subsidiary JE A5 Bt /BB A B 3R 1B 19,453 19,453
Total current liabilities mBABEEARE 135,985 55,985
Net current assets REEEFE 179,764,242 73,622,670
NET ASSETS BEEFE 329,764,243 223,622,671
Capital and reserves BERGEE
Share capital % < 6,048,000 14,400,000
Reserves & 27(b) 323,716,243 209,222,671
TOTAL EQUITY HER A 329,764,243 223,622,671

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Sin Kwok Lam

HEE M

R-ZE-XREF=A-+-HLKEFe
HE THTIIESREES:

Tsang Yan Kwong

Bx

—E-AEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 45 & Bt 78 3} 2% B 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE—T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

Ll |
27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 27. XA GBI R R EEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY R(E
(continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EATIHEEES

98

Proposed
Share Capital Contributed Accumulated final
premium reserve surplus losses  dividend
ARG BEAY
I 3 i & BAXfE ET RitEBE 3}
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2014 RZFE-NF
—A—H 94,429,089 138,759,615 —  (44,884,286) 2,400,000 190,704,418
Profit for the year FREF — — — 2,961,705 — 2,961,705
Issue of shares on placement RERETROG 19,200,000 — — — — 19,200,000
Share issue expenses BipETEY (763,452) - - - - (763,452)
Dividend paid BIRARE 15 — (480,000) — — (2,400,000)  (2,880,000)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—EE+=A
1 January 2015 =t-8Rk
“Z-8fF
—A—H 112,865,637 138,279,615 — (41,922,581) — 209,222,671
Loss for the year FABB — — — (949,629) — (949,629)
Issue of shares under rights REHRETRG
issue 26(c) 59,616,000 — — — — 59,616,000
Share premium reduction &1 )4 B R (168,878,070) — 168,878,070 — — —
Capital reorganisation BAE R — — 51,840,000 — — 51,840,000
Issue of shares on placement BERETRN 26(e) 8,006,400 - - - — 8,006,400
Share issue expenses R B 17 % (4,019,199) — — — — (4,019,199
At 31 December 2015 RZIZ—1F
+-ZA=+—-8 7,590,768 138,279,615 220,718,070 (42,872,210) — 323,716,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

o=l

EF—EHEMEERRAF

ﬁ %7% i& % Izﬁ Ef (continued #%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

28. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 41 and 43 of this annual report

respectively.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting passed
on 24 December 2014, the change of the domicile of
the Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda was
approved by the shareholders. The change of domicile of
the Company was subsequently completed on 5 February
2015. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company, which is distributable,
arose as a result of the Group reorganisation implemented
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares in
2009 and represented the excess of the consolidated net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

28. k16

x5H

(a)

(b)

AREEBELERLEDHH R
KA RN BT RBIENEAR
HREMPERARE R A%
2B -

EETEEREH

(1)

(i)

REMASEFBRRE - AQF
B EERNE ST DK TA
RAER - EEREEE D KK
BHH®E  AREAEGRENE
EHNABERBBRETD I
ZE -

M

A

BERZZT—NF+=A=+
MEBBNEFIIRESR AR
AAHEREBMEERED
BRI - ANFBMER
R-Z—AFE-_ARAZK
BEBRE-NAN—F2F
FE o ARARIRMBEEERENES
AUBRARAFADIE °

B 1o 1

AEBNERFBHIRAEE
BHEARBBRONR-_BENSF
EimETEMAMES - BIR
IEEA BB AR R
HERAE(EEARFE AR ]
METHRAEEZZH -

RRF A IR ERNEE T A
AEEBBARABROR=-F
TAELTMETEMAMRE
£ EDRBIE AR E R
REAEFEBLREARIER
REBEMBTORAEEZ 2
R o

—E-EEFEH
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

28. RESERVES (continued) 28. & (&

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) fEEMHERBEME)
(i) Contributed surplus (i) A &R

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company AEERAABHIBARERTY
arose as a result of the Group cancellation of the share AAREEFHEARRRMNDGE
premium account of the Company as mentioned in the R(EERREFHRM) R
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the A& 7N 8 48 (40 kTR 5E26(d) AT

capital reorganisation as mentioned in note 26(d) above. i) FTE & -
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed BEABREE-NN—FQF
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders. EOBMABRKREANHSIRT
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or R A MEEUTIE
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if; S BIARR BT EE IR SR
RE SKEZABGBFELS

K :

—  the Company is, or would after the payment be, — ARAREHEIRNE
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or HEAEREIBE

&5k

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities —  ARFREEMAEBRE
and its issued share capital and share premium B ERNE EEIRE
account. afF RADETRAMN
R miaBERHAEAN -
(iv)  Property revaluation reserve (iv) YEEFEE

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of an owner-occupied property, which became an
investment property because its use had changed, at
the date of transfer. The revaluation reserve will transfer
directly to retained profits upon subsequent sale or

retirement of assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

:Z/H_j\ /15\ Eﬁ %7% i& 2% M—JL EEE (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HAF+=-_A=+—HIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants, agents, legal and
financial advisers of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 24 November 2011 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than five years
from the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Share Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date
of the offer.

29.

VLR 3 B 5 G B9 4 =K
B R A T B

ANRE GRS E ([T E])
SEAHAEEMRLEERLERNAE
BLBEREEHROE S EB2EE
BEARTDREADAMBRA G2 8K H
BES THRAS SRBE ®F. %
BERM RE XLV BEMN - BRE
FEER-E——F+—A=-t+HBEEK
BIESITRHRET BRETEEEZ
BEE+ERTARE R -

REEERBEBERESEREORTERE
BESZSHEERRETEFBASRARA
FARHEETRMI0% - REM+T=
BEAMEA REBEEIETTEER
HABNaER2EENRNESHAR
RARENME ) BB BT R #91% © (A
E-FRBBHUERBENERERAERR
RBERARE LHE -

MARARIESE HZETRABRETERRE
REEZEMBEARLERE  AES
SIEMITE R E R E ot REMT
ZEABMEA AMAREEERRRB L
FATESKREZAEMBEARLTM
R AR BT A B R B B TR 19 0.1% 3k 48
BRAARRMABLASNERTE)
885,000,000 7T Y i A% 1 78 & IR R A AR
RAREEELRAME -

REBRENREZTRREZAHLE+MA
NARARAZNSRBEARBEXIBLRE
oo BELBRENTEAIKESE
E-RNETEBHMMERHALLG  TRAEBG
e 2 R AKE A s I A AT B E R B A e
FEZAURFERE)ER -

BRENTEETLEEEE  HEAAEK
R FN&EREE  ()VAAFRMNRIEZE
[l HE BB A BgE 25X P O MR T (B ¢ (i) AN R B R
NERREAHANAERZAEBIMN
TP THE : R>(NARBRMDNELZAH
WEE -

—z-ax5#% 101



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

29.

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

The share options of the Company are unlisted and each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$0.02
(upon share consolidation of every two issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share with par value of HK$0.02
each) of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the holder
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its inception.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Disposal of a subsidiary
On 28 December 2015, the Group disposed of its subsidiary, In

Industrial Co., Limited. Net assets at the date of disposal were as
follows:

29.

30.

4R /EI\ /\7f 4_\('% $& E Bﬁ Ef (continued %)

PARR 5 B B BE B 14 3K (42)
B R AT ()

ARRBRELSE LT MESmBRES
TREARE —BRARFEE2ETE
BR(EHEHFRSEMEEREECNE
THEETRRETEROAHS - KEE
0.028 TLHY B 1) HOHE R - BEARME Y B T
FHAAUBBKREHINBRRARG LIRENE
A e

B AR E AL A SR - 3 AR HR B AR M AT &
BB -

FERERBERME

HE—FERBAE

RZE-—RE+-_A-+/N\B XEELE
HWBRARFREXAERAR - REER
HMEESENT:

HK$
7T
Intangible assets — motor vehicle registration mark mEEE — AEER
555 15 792,448
Amount due to the Group RAREEFKIB (829,752)
Net liabilities disposed of FrEEa®EFE (37,304)
Sale of amount due to the Group HE RN EERIE 829,752
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s — B AR M= 286,818
Total consideration BRE 1,079,266
Consideration satisfied by cash LAIR & A RE 1,079,266
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEERSRAFRE:
Cash consideration received 2R e RE 1,079,266
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EF—EHEMEERRAF

,Z/rb\ /EI\ /\7j %% $& 2% Bﬁ Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_ZT—HF T -_A=1+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31
contingent liabilities:

December 2015, the Group had the following significant

The Group’s external legal counsel advised that the Group’s loan
agreements which involve charging an interest rate at a rate more
than 48%, but less than 60% per annum shall be presumed to be
extortionate and such portion of extortionate interest is potentially
unenforceable as determined by the court. Subject to the court's
consideration of facts relevant to individual borrowers, this presumption
may be rebutted if the court, having regard to all circumstances is
satisfied that such rate is not unreasonable or unfair. As at 31 December
2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to such legal risk comprised
its aggregate loans receivable granted to borrowers of approximately
HK$21.15 million (2014: HK$25.27 million).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor:
One subsidiary leases out office premises to third parties under
operating lease arrangements with negotiable lease terms ranging

from one to two years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under a non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

31.

32.

HAEBRE

RZT—RAF+-A=+—0 XEEB%HH
INTEREAREE:

AEBHIINPEAERBERREL  AEBHR
U B B 38 48% 1B 1K 7R 60% I 4 F) =R 1 B 3%
A EETE AR BREKGEER RN
oA HEERE AT ARSI IT - R
e WEEEEEEBENERARENS
ERFBBRZEEN AT ELIFFETE
B ARAF  BIEETFRE  -HN=F
—AF+-ZA=+—8 FAEEBEBZZE
ERBRNESSRAHBETERANER
B 4858 #921,150,000/8 7T (ZZF — [0 4F -
25,270,000 7T) °

FERORH
() fEBHEA:

REBEEBRORE  —HHERF
BRLNEMELETBLE=7 7
HENEERS —EMF -

R-BE-—RAF+-_A=+—H &K&
EARE AT S AR KRR E
WREMASEENBRAT:

as follows:
2014
—ZT—E
HK$
BT
Within one year —FR 405,000 768,509
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FEERF
(BREEREMEF) 202,500 —
607,500 768,509

(b) As lessee:

One subsidiary leases office premises for the Group under
operating lease arrangements with negotiable lease terms ranging
from one to two years. The rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.

(b) fEBEBEA:

RBEEBRORZE  —HHEAQF
RASELERLE - AIHEaE
MR EmFE -HEHRNZES
BEEf & BEFABE®AED -
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & 81 75 ¥ 3% B 5% (continued %)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. EEHORH(E
(continued)
(b) As lessee: (continued) (b) EBEBEAN: (&)
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—80 K&
payments under a non-cancellable operating leases are payable BB HELCERAORRRKE
as follows: NEEHESBABENBROAT:
2014
—T-mE
HK$
7T
Within one year —F R 434,858 963,108
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. AEF XS5
(a) In addition to those related party transactions and balances (a) KBUZEVBRRPEMITHMEET]
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had EHBAERTRGRESRZIN  KNER
the following material transactions with its related parties during FANEAEBEFBUTERRS
the year:
2014
—Z 4
HK$
iom
Interest income from a related company RKE—BBEEAAFE
(note) N D 1,364,004 1,365,092
Consideration received for the disposal of a A —REIREARHE
subsidiary to a related company (note) —HNBAEM
BB (B 51) 1,079,266 —
Consideration received for the disposal mM—HEEEAREE
of property, plant and equipment to a ME - WERZED
related company (note) BB (&) 100,000 —
Note: The related company is indirectly wholly-owned by a company Mid: ZAEATAARAANEERES
where the chairman and director of the Company, is a substantial EEITBRR IRRESFH—
shareholder, chairman and director. MAREE2ERS -
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i Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B 75 R 2% B 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE—T—AF+=-A=+—HIFE

FE:

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. BAEF X5 (&)

(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREAEFIILE R

Loans to a related company (note) m— R E QA
B R (KAL) 12,400,000 12,400,000

Note: The related company is indirectly wholly-owned by a company M ZAEARAAARERERES
where the chairman and director of the Company is a substantial EEZTERR THEREFHN—
shareholder, chairman and director. The loans to the related party HAREEL2ERA - R-T—W
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015 bear effective interest rate of ER-_ZFE-RAE+-_A=+—H"
11% per annum and are repayable on 8 April 2016. MEER BERDIRERERNE1%
R XAR-—TE-XRFMUANA

BE -
(c)  The Group had paid compensation to key management personnel (00 FAAEEMFEZEEAEINH

during the year as follows: T

Short term employee benefits including mEEE R A

salaries, bonuses, paid annual leaves and (BfEHe 64

sick leaves BFEBRERBRRE) 5,383,332 5,155,137
Post-employment benefits & 8 R K& F 589,875 589,875

5,973,207 5,745,012

—az£% 105



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & 81 7% 3 3% Mt
For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZE-_T—HAF+-A=+—HILFE

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 17 December 2015, the Company and Jun Yang Securities
Company Limited entered into a placing agreement in respect
of the placement of 60,480,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each to not less than six placees whose beneficial owners are
independent third parties at a price of HK$0.174 per placing
share. The placement was completed on 8 January 2016.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in the special general meeting
held on 19 February 2016, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$405,540,000 by way of rights issue to the
qualifying shareholders on the basis of nine right shares for every
one share held on the record date at the subscription price of
HK$0.127 per rights share. The rights issue is to be completed
by 31 March 2016.

Further details of the proposed rights issue are set out in the
Company'’s circular and prospectus dated 29 January 2016 and 3
March 2016 respectively.
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A

At (continued %)

34. REMESEIR

(a

RZZE—HAF+=ZA++ER  EQF
HEGEFLFBRAR I —HREER
# O NAEBUEREEERH0.174
B ITHIER AL %60,480,000 % & &
B0.02B THEBR T LRI HE
A ﬁﬁ?&%%%é%ﬁ/\ﬂﬁﬁi

FE=H BREER-_T—RF—AN
AR °
BER-TE—ANE-_A+HIAETH

BREFIARE EBRORER AR
BEERRCHBSEEAE—BK
MERBENARERBKRGOOHEE &
REESRHERRKRMH127B THAE
BRBRRETHBEROOARNES
#7405,540,0008 7T « R GHR =T
—RNE=ZA=+—HATEMK °

=

EHEREEHRNE-—FTFBEDH
RAARIBBHAZZE—RFEF—A=
NBERZZ—RE=HA=HHAEMK
HEEERA -
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Financial Summary B #%5#EE

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and equity of AN EEDEE XY HEREBRBEAET K
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group's FEAEEMNVBEEULEE BELEZT
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This {EEE ENNM BT o AFHE LKL E %

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. MIBMEH—FHD -
FINANCIAL RESULTS MEES
2014 2013 2012 2011
—T-mE = ZT-Zf ZE——%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
T s TT BT T
Revenue, other income and Irzs s Hip g A &
gains I % 68,404,224 59,839,009 60,736,968 60,729,831 53,790,935
Profit/(loss) before income tax BT RATLEF
(B1#8) 29,498,918 29,099,577 17,127,669  (29,904,423) 9,478,657
Income tax expense FERm% (4,626,212) (4,101,899) (2,126,369) (88,009) (2,483,099)
Profit/(loss) for the year FraFl/(BR) 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300  (29,992,432) 6,995,558
Profit/(loss) attributable to UNGIEZ 2PN
owners of the Company w A (E18) 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300  (29,992,432) 6,995,558
= ==
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY SE BERER
2014 2013 2012 2011
—F-mFg  ZF-=f ZT-ZfF ZT——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Total assets EERE 488,912,017 423,479,509 367,809,693 316,557,314 274,220,688
Total liabilities BELE (12,746,179)  (84,481,353)  (71,765,763)  (49,620,611)  (16,621,272)

476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930 266,936,703 257,599,416

Equity attributable to owners of ~ A&AZR

the Company 1 & 476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930 266,936,703 257,599,416
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Particulars of Properties ¥ %1%

At 31 December2015 =2 —HE+-_A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REME
Attributable
interest to
Location Use Tenure the Group
AEE
it By A& HEH FE 16 #E 23
Units 901-902, 9th Floor, Commercial Long lease 100%
Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
) [EES REITE A 100%
e B hI1215%
BERERKNE
91#901-902 %
Units 903, 9th Floor, Commercial Long lease 100%
Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
s [ES REIED 100%
BB R1215%
ERERAE
912903 %
Units 905-908, 9th Floor, Commercial Long lease 100%
Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
) [EES REITE A 100%
fEehBhI1215%
BERERKNE

9#£905-908E
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